City of North Bay Village

_ Administrative Offices
1700 Kennedy Causeway, Suite #132 North Bay Village, FL 33141
Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: {305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com

OFFICIAL AGENDA

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING

CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE
1700 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, #132
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

TUESDAY, JULY 10, 2012

7:30 P.M.

NOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN TOQ ALL INTERESTED PARTIES THAT IF ANY PERSON SHOULD DECIDE TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE AT THE
FORTHCOMING MEETING OF THE CITY COMMISSION, SUCH PERSON WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE, -
HE OR SHE WILL NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY
AND EVIDENCE UPGN WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE
INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT
OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW.

CITY COMMISSION MEETINGS ARE BROADCAST LIVE ON CHANNEL 20 FOR ATLANTIC BROADBAND SUBSCRIBERS.

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 990, PERSONS NEEDING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION OR A SIGN
LANGUAGE INTERPRETER TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS FROCEEDING SHOULD CONTACT (305) 756-7171 NO LATER THAN FOUR DAYS PRIOR TO
THE PROCEEDING. IF HEARING IMPAIRED, TELEPHONE THE FLORIDA RELAY SERVICE NUMBERS AT (800) 255-8771 (TDD} OR (800) 955-8700
(VOICE)} FOR ASBISTANCE.

1L CALL TO ORDER; PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE; ROLL CALL

A. MOMENT OF SILENCE IN THE PASSING OF MAYOR
EMERITUS DR. PAUL VOGEL

2. PROCLAMATIONS AND AWARDS

B. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

1. CITY’S INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT FOR FY 2010-2011
- KEEFE, MCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

2.  SPECIAL FINANCIAL AUDIT
BERKOWITZ DICK POLLACK & BRANT
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS, LLP

- Mayor Vice-Mayor Commissioner Commissioner
Connie Leon-Kreps Eddie Lim Page 1 Stuprt Blumberg Dr. Richard Chervony



C. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS

BOARD REPORTS

A, ANIMAL CONTROL ADVISORY BOARD

B. ARTS, CULTURAL & SPECIAL EVENTS BOARD
C. CITIZENS BUDGET AND OVERSIGHT BOARD
D. COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT BOARD

E. PLANNING & ZONING BOARD

F. YOUTH SERVICES BOARD

G. ADVISORY CHARTER REVIEW BOARD

PUBLIC SAFETY DISCUSSION

COMMISSIONERS’® REPORTS

CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

A,

ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITTING UPDATE - BAYWALK
PROJECT/PERMITTING PROCESS FOR SEAWALL AT DR.

'PAUL VOGEL PARK (RALPH ROSADO-CORZO CASTELLA

CARBALLO THOMPSON SALMAN, P.A. (C3TS) (DEFERRED FROM
JUNE 12, 2012)

GOOD & WELFARE AT APPROXIMATELY 8:30 P.M.

- CONSENT AGENDA: Matters on the Consent Agenda are self-explanatory and are

not expected to require discussion or review. Items will be enacted by one motion. If
discussion is desired by any member of the Commission, that item must be removed from
the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

A.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, URGING AND
ENCOURAGING THE FLORIDA STATE LEGISLATURE TO
ENACT LEGISLATION BANNING THE MARKETING,
POSSESSION, TRAFFICKING AND FURNISHING OF “BATH
SALTS” CONTAINING - DANGEROUS SYNTHETIC DRUGS;
PROVIDING FOR TRANSMITTAL; AND SETTING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY MAYOR CONNIE
LEON-KREPS)

The proposed Resolution expresses support for legislation to permanently
ban bath salts in order to protect our community.
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1.) Commission Action

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY
MANAGER TO EXPEND $455 FOR PLACEMENT OF PLANTINGS
IN THE CERAMIC POTS ON THE FLAT BRIDGE BETWEEN
NORTH BAY ISLAND AND TREASURE ISLAND; SETTING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY CITY MANAGER DENNIS
KELLY)

The proposed Resolution will allow the expenditure of funds to replace
the plants in the ceramic pots on the causeway with Dwarf Oleanders.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE
RENEWAL OF A HIGHWAY LANDSCAPING AGREEMENT
WITH THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
FOR MAINTENANCE OF THE TURF AND LANDSCAPED AREAS
ON THE 79™ STREET CAUSEWAY AND PROVIDING FOR
COMPENSATION TO THE CITY FOR SUCH SERVICES;
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY CITY
MANAGER DENNIS KELLY)

The proposed Resolution will authorize an agreement with the State of
Florida Department of Transportation for the City to continue to
maintain the turf and landscaped areas of the portion of the causeway
within the City, as well as provide compensation for such services.

- A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN
AGREEMENT IN FORM BETWEEN THE CHILDREN’S TRUST
AND THE CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE PROVIDING FOR
GRANT FUNDING FOR A CITY AFTER-SCHOOL CARE
PROGRAM FOR THE 2012-13 SCHOOL YEAR AND A SUMMER
CAMP FOR SUMMER 2013; AUTHORIZING CITY OFFICIALS
TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY STEPS TO ENTER INTO AND
IMPLEMENT THE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE CITY
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING
THE EXPENDITURE OF BUDGETED FUNDS; PROVIDING FOR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY CITY MANAGER
DENNIS KELLY)
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The proposed Resolution will approve the form of agreement to be used
between the City and the Trust for Public Lands to provide the terms
and conditions for grant funding for afterschool care and summer camp
programs.

1) Commission Action

10. PLANNING & ZONING CONSENT AGENDA

11.  ORDINANCES FOR FIRST READING AND RESOLUTIONS

A.

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE
SUBMISSION TO THE ELECTORS PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO
THE CITY CHARTER AS PROVIDED BY THE ADVISORY CHARTER
REVIEW BOARD IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 10.13 OF THE
CITY CHARTER; PROVIDING REQUISITE BALLOT LANGUAGE FOR
SUBMISSION TO THE ELECTORATE; CALLING A SPECIAL
ELECTION ON THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY
CHARTER TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2012;
PROVIDING FOR NOTICE OF ELECTION; PROVIDING FOR
INCLUSION IN THE CHARTER; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

The proposed Resolution recommends changes to the City Charter
following review by the Advisory Charter Review Board for placement on
the ballot of a Special Election on November 6, 2012.

1.) Commission Action

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE,
FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 35 “TAXATION AND
FINANCE,” OF THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES TO REVISE
THE REQUIREMENTS AND PROCEDURES RELATED TO
GENERAL AND ENTERPRISE FUND RESERVES; PROVIDING
FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY CITY COMMISSIONER
RICHARD CHERVONY)

The proposed Ordinance will strengthen the emergency reserve funding
program to address such emergencies as Hurricanes and other natural
disasters.
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1) Commission Action

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA PROVIDING
MONTHLY FINANCIAL EXPENDITURE REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL PURCHASES OVER ONE
THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS; AMENDING THE
COMMISSION MEETING AND AGENDA PROCEDURES TO
- PROVIDE REQUIREMENTS FOR FINANCIAL
EXPENDITURE REPORTING; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY CITY COMMISSIONER
RICHARD CHERVONY)

. The proposed Resolution will require the City Manager to provide a
financial expenditure report at the first Commission Meeting each month
identifying each expenditure over $1,500.

1.) Commission Action

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA,
AMENDING CHAPTER 152, ZONING, SECTION 152.111, ADULT
ENTERTAINMENT, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING
FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING
FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
(UNTRODUCED BY CITY COMMISSIONER RICHARD CHERVONY, CITY
MANAGER DENNIS KELLY, AND CITY ATTORNEYS SUSAN
TREVARTHEN AND KATHRYN MEHAFFEY) — FIRST READING -
PUBLIC HEARING

The proposed Ordinance will improve the clarity of the existing regulations
while providing for the appropriate location of such establishments
consistent with all controlling laws.

1.) Commission Action

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA,
CREATING CHAPTER 119 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES
PERTAINING TO ADULT ENTERTAINMENT LICENSING AND
BUSINESS REGULATION; PROVIDING FOR  CONFLICTS;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION;
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY
CITY COMMISSIONER RICHARD CHERVONY, CITY MANAGER DENNIS
KELLY, AND CITY ATTORNEYS SUSAN TREVARTHEN AND KATHRYN
MEHAFFEY) - FIRST READING
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This Business Regulation Ordinance provides for licensing for adult
entertainment establishments and for application requirements and
procedures, as well as structural and operational criteria for approval
and maintenance of such licenses consistent with all controlling laws.

1.) Commission Action

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION
OF AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT PERMITTING THE CITY TO ACT
AS CO-PERMITTEE WITH MIAMI DADE COUNTY FOR THE
PURPOSE OF ANNUAL PERMITTING REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
TO COMPLY WITH THE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
(EPA) NATIONAL DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)
PROGRAM TO REGULATE: MUNICIPAL STORM WATER
DISCHARGE, AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF THE AGREEMENT;
AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF BUDGETED FUNDS;
SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY CIT Y MANAGER
DENNIS KELLY)

The proposed Resolution will allow for the sampling, monitoring, and
analysis of the storm water sewer system.

1) Commission Action

12. PUBLIC HEARINGS INCLUDING ORDINANCES FOR SECOND READING

A.

A REQUEST BY MIGUEL FORNELLA FOR A SPECIAL USE
EXCEPTION UNDER SECTION 152.098 OF THE CITY OF NORTH
BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE OPERATION
OF AJET SKI RENTAL BUSINESS AT THE COMMERCIAL
MARINA AT 7904 WEST DRIVE, HARBOR ISLAND, NORTH BAY
VILLAGE, FLORIDA. :

1.) Commission Action

AN APPLICATION BY SOTREZA, LLC CONCERNING

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7800 HISPANOLA AVENUE
(FORMERLY USED AS A TEMPLE), LOTS 1&2 & E1/2 LOT 3,
BLOCK 1, COMMERCIAL ADDITION TO TREASURE
ISLAND, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS:
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1. SITE PLAN APPROVAL PURSUANT TO SECTION
152.105(C)(®) OF THE CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE
CODE OF ORDINANCES IN CONNECTION WITH THE
OPERATION OF A PRE-SCHOOL/DAY CARE CENTER.

1.) Commission Action

C. AN APPLICATION BY ZF DEVELOPMENT, LLC, CONCERNING
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 8000 WEST DRIVE, TRACT C OF
HARBOR ISLAND NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA 1IN
CONNECTION WITH THE DEVELOPMENT OF A 285-UNIT
RENTAL APARTMENT DEVELOPMENT FOR THE
FOLLOWING: |

1. SITE PLAN APPROVAL PURSUANT TO SECTION
152.105(C)9) OF THE CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE
CODE OF ORDINANCES IN CONNECTION WITH THE
CONSTRUCTION OF A 285-UNIT RENTAL APARTMENT
DEVELOPMENT ON A 4.47+ ACRE SITE.

2. AN EXCEPTION PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.044(E) OF
THE CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF
ORDINANCES TO THE PARKING REQUIREMENTS OF
SECTION 152.044(A)(2) TO ALLOW BETWEEN 519 AND
592 PARKING SPACES WHERE 662 SPACES ARE
REQUIRED.

3. A VARIANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.097 OF THE
CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES
FROM THE STANDARDS OF SECTION 18A-6(C)(8) OF THE
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY CODE, AS ADOPTED BY THE
CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, TO PERMIT 52% OF
THE NUMBER OF REQUIRED TREES TO BE PALM TREES
WHERE A MAXIMUM OF 30% IS ALLOWED.

4. A VARIANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.097 OF THE
CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES
FROM SECTION 54.1 AND ATTACHMENT A.S. OF
APPENDIX D OF THE CITY’S CONSOLIDATED LAND
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS TO PERMIT 20%
SHADE COVERAGE OF THE SHORELINE AREA
WITHIN FIVE YEARS OF PLANTING WHERE 50%
SHADE COVERAGE IS REQUIRED.
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5. A VARIANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.097 OF THE
CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES
FROM THE STANDARDS OF SECTION 152.029(C)(2) TO
ALLOW A FRONT-YARD SETBACK AS LITTLE AS 11
FEET 10 INCHES IN SOME AREAS WHERE 25 FEET IS
REQUIRED.

6. A VARIANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.097 OF THE
CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES
FROM SECTION 152.029(C)(6), MINIMUM FLOOR AREA,
TO ALLOW LESS THAN THE REQUIRED UNIT
STANDARDS.

e, A VARIANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 152.097 OF THE

CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES
FROM SECTION 152.056(A), SETBACK
ENCROACHMENTS, TO ALLOW A ROOF OVERHANG
TO EXTEND INTO THE REQUIRED YARD,
COMPLETELY TO THE PROPERTY LINE AND AS MUCH
AS 15 FEET, 9 INCHES BEYOND THE PROPERTY LINE
INTO THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF WEST DRIVE WHERE
ROOF OVERHANGS ARE NOT PERMITTED TO EXTEND
MORE THAN 36 INCHES INTO THE REQUIRED YARD.,

1) Commission Action

13. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA ACCEPTING/DENYING THE
REQUEST BY NORTH BAY VILLAGE INVESTMENT TRUST, LLC
TO REDUCE PREVIOUSLY ASSESSED CODE COMPLIANCE FINES
FOR CASE NO. 10-001 AND UTILITY COSTS AND PENALTIES;
DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ANY REQUIRED
DOCUMENTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
(INTRODUCED BY CITY MANAGER DENNIS KELLY)

The proposed Resolution will authorize settlement of pending fines and
penalties relating to code enforcement violations and unpaid utility
charges associated with the property at 1755 — 79" Street Causeway.

1.) Commission Action
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14.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

B. REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING - FEBRUARY 14, 2012
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING - DECEMBER 13, 2011
SPECTAL CITY COMMISSION MEETING - NOVEMBER 29, 2011
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING - NOVEMBER 8, 2011
SPECIAL CITY COMMISSION MEETING - NOVEMBER 1, 2011
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING - OCTOBER 11, 2011
BUDGET PUBLIC HEARING - SEPTEMBER 20, 2011

1) Commission Action

NEW BUSINESS

A. DISCUSSION REGARDING NORTH BAY ISLAND COMMISSIONER
VACANCY

B. TREASURE ISLAND BULB OUTS/TREE RELOCATION
/MIAMI-DADE COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD (COMMISSIONER
STUART BLUMBERG)

1.) Commission Action

C. REDESIGN OF CITY’S WEBSITE (COMMISSIONER STUART
BLUMBERG)

1.) Commission Action

D. REMOVAL OF BULLETIN BOARDS FROM ENTRANCES TO
ISLANDS (COMMISSIONER STUART BLUMBERG)

1) Commission Action
E. CONTRACTS (COMMISSIONER RICHARD CHERVONY)
1) Commission Action

F. 79" STREET CAUSEWAY BEAUTIFICATION PROJECT
(COMMISSIONER RICHARD CHERVONY)

G. DR.PAUL VOGEL COMMUNITY PARK (COMMISSIONER
RICHARD CHERVONY)
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15. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING — MARCH 13, 2012 |
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING — APRIL 10, 2012

1.) Commission Action

16. ADJOURNMENT
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THURSDAY, JULY 12, 2012
SATURDAY, JULY 14, 2012

MONDAY, JULY 16, 2012

THURSDAY, JULY 19, 2012
'SATURDAY, JULY 21,2012
WEDNESDAY, JULY 25, 2012
THURSDAY, JULY 26, 2012

SATURDAY, JULY 28, 2012

CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE

MEETING NOTICE

6-8 P.M. NORTH BAY VILLAGE CITIZENS POLICE
ACADEMY

23 PM. BOOK MOBILE

- (1841 GALLEON STREET)

7:00 P.M. YOUTH SERVICES BOARD MEETING

6-8 P.M. NORTH BAY VILLAGE CITIZENS POLICE
ACADEMY ‘

2-3 P.M. BOOK MOBILE
(1841 GALLEON STREET)

4:30 PM. CITIZENS BUDGET & OVERSIGHT BOARD
MEETING

6-8 P.M. NORTH BAY VILLAGE CITIZENS POLICE
ACADEMY

2-3 P.M. BOOK MOBILE
(1841 GALLEON STREET)
ACADEMY

Meetings are held in the City Commission Chambers at 1700 Kennedy Causeway, Suite #132,
North Bay Village, Florida, unless otherwise specified. Any meeting may be opened and continued
and, under such circumstances, additional legal notice would not be provided. Any persom may
contact the City Clerk at (305) 756-7171 for information. In accordance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, persons needing special accommodation to participate in this proceeding
or to review any documents relative thereto should contact the City for assistance at (305) 756-

7171 no later than four (4) days prior to the proceedings.

Florida Relay Service at (800) 955-8771 (TDD) or (800) 955-8770 (Voice) for assistance.
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Keefe, McCullough & Co., LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members.of the City Commission
City of North Bay Village, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North
Bay Village, Florida, (the "City") as of and for the year ended September 30, 2011, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the City of North Bay Village,
Florida, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those stapdardg require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the

overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Bay Village, Florida as of
September 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 26,
2012 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance and other matters with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
agreements. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and other matters and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 7 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for comsistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence (o express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

4550 N, Federal Highway & Suite 410 @ Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 # 954.771.0894 & 954.938.9353 (F] & www.kmCepacom
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City of North Bay Village, Florida

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s financial statements as a whole. The budgetary comparison. information
and combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audiis of States, Local Governments ard Non-Profit
Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial statements. The budgetary comparison
information, combining and individual nonmajot fund financial statements and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements ot to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. '

/(eeﬁey MeCullowgh & Co., £LLP

KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
June 26, 2012
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

As management of the City of North Bay Village, Florida (the "City") we offer readers of
the accompanying financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets of the City of North Bay Village exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most
recent fiscal year by $ 12,494,095 (net assets). Governmental net assets amount to $ 3,946,245
and business-type net assets amount to $ 8,507,850. The City's net assets increased by
$ 3,650,262 during the current fiscal year.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, the City's governmental activities revenues,
expenses and transfers in were $ 7,220,855, § 7,138,548 and $ 217,264 respectively. As a result,
governmental net assets increased by $ 299,571.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, the City's business-type activities revenues,
expenses and transfers out were $ 7,346,736, $ 3,778,781 and $ 217,264 respectively. As a result,
business-type net assets increased by $ 3,350,691 due primarily to capital grants received during
the year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic
financial statements, The City of North Bay Village's basic financial statements comprise three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, 3) and notes to
the basic financial statements, This report also contains supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial statements, which
consist of the following two statements described below, were designed to provi_de readers with a
broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of North

- Bay Village that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their
costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the
City include general government, public safety, building, planning and zoning, public works,
parks and recreation, and interest on long-term debt. The business-type activities of the City
include water and sewer operations. The government-wide financial statements can be found on

pages 8 and 9 of this report.
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

Fund financial statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of
North Bay Village, like other state and local governmenis, usecs fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can
be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and
outflows of spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available at the end of
the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing
requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with -
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements, By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City's near-
term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of North Bay Village maintains four governmental fund types. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the capital
projects fund, and the federal forfeiture fund, which are the only three funds considered to be a
major fund. All other special revenue funds and debt service fund have been combined and are
presented as non-major funds.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 10 through 13 of this
report.

Proprietary funds - The City of North Bay Village maintains one type of proprietary fund
referred to as enterprise funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the government wide financial statements and are used to account for
water and sewer and stormwater operations. These include the Utility Fund and the Stormwater
Utility Fund. '

The proprietary fund provides the same type of information as the government-wide
financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide
separate information for the water and sewer and stormwater operations, which are considered to
be major funds of the City of North Bay Village. The proprietary fund financial statements can be
found on pages 14 through 17 of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is
essential for a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 18 through 34 of this
report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net assets over time may serve as a useful indicator of the City's financial
osition. In the case of the City of North Bay Village, total assets exceeded liabilities by
§12,454,095 at the close of September 30, 2011. Governmental activitics net assets totaled
$ 3,046,245, and business-type activities net assets totaled $ 8,507,850. The following table
presents a condensed statement of net assets as compared to the prior year.
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

Governmental Activilies ~ Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Current and other assets $ 6,175,626 $ 6474217 3 679,923 § 827973 $ 6,855,549 § 7,302,190
Restricted assets - - 460,635 401,320 460,635 401,320
Capital assets, net 8,405,835 8,096,811 10,729,333 6,873,756 19,135,168 14,970,567

Total assets 14,581,461 14,571,028 11,869,891 8,103,049 20,451,352 22,674,077
Current and
other liabilities 1,000,216 1,181,075 1,471,199 1,749,929 2,471,415 2,931,004
Long term liabilities 9,635,000 9,743,279 1,800,842 1,195,961 11,525,842 10,939,240

Total liabilities 10,635,216 10,924,354 3,362,041 2,945,890 13,997,257 13,870,244
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 1,914,249 1,364,245 8,991,838 5,854,619 10,906,087 7,218,864

Restricted 1,569,472 571,581 - - 1,569,472 571,581
Unrestricted (deficit) 462,524 1,710,848 (483,988) (697,460) {21,464) 1,013,388

Total net assets $ 3,046,245 $ 3646674 $ 8,507,850 $ 5,157,159 $ 12,454,095 §_ 8,803,833

P i — e s B e

Unrestricted net assets totaled $ (21,464) on September 30, 2011.

The largest portion of the City's net assets reflects its investment in capital assets {e.g.,
land, buildings, vehicles, etc.).

The City of North Bay Village uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, they are not available for future spending. An additional portion of the City's net
assets represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The
remaining balance of unrestricted net assets may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors,

At the end of September 30, 2011, the City of North Bay Village is able to report positive
balances in all two categories of net assets, both for the City as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities, except the unrestricted balance of the business-type

activities had a deficit of $ 483,988. The City's total net assets increased by $ 3,650,262 during
the current fiscal year.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 1,470,474 % 448,049 $ 4638378 & 4577419 § 6,108,852 $ 5,025,468

Operating grants

and contributions 02,416 109,220 - - 302,416 109,220

Capital grants

and contributions 31,880 166,254 2,707,001 2,601,923 2,738,881 2,768,177
General revenues:

Property taxes 3,420,449 4,635,298 - - 3,420,449 4,635,298

Other taxes and fees 1,815,477 1,810,370 - - 1,815,477 1,810,379

Other general revenues 180,159 319,631 1,357 461 181,516 320,092

Total revenues 7,220,855 7,488,831 7,346,736 7,179,803 - 14,567,591 14,668,634
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Expenses:
General government 1,628,104 1,933,488 - - 1,628,104 1,933,488
Public safety 4,300,816 4,279,969 - - 4,300,316 4,279,969
Building, planning, -
and zoning 198,746 263,396 - - 198,746 263,396
Public works (33,390 550,599 - - 633,390 550,599
Parks and recreation 79,365 73,405 - - 79,365 73,405
Interest on long term debt 298,126 -354,340 - - 298,126 354,340
Utility - - 3,726,551 4,573,136 3,726,551 4,573,136
Stormwater utility - - 52,230 84,772 52,230 84,772
Total expenses 7,138,548 7,455,197 3,778,781 4,657,908 10,917,329 12,113,105
Increase innet assets -
before transfers 82,307 33,634 3,567,955 . 2,521,895 3,650,202 2,555,529
Transfers 217,264 - (217,264)
Increase in net assets 299,571 33,634 3,350,691 2,521,895 3,650,262 2,555,529
Net assets, October 1 3,646,674 3,613,040 5,157,159 2,635,264 8,803,833 6,248,304
Net assets,
September 30 $ 3,046,245 $ 3,646,674 % 8,507,850 §_ 5,157,159 % 12,454,095 $ 8,803,833

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

Governmental funds - The focus of the City of North Bay Village's governmental funds is
to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of the City's net resources available for spending at the end
of the fiscal year.

 As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $ 5,133,625, a decrease of $ 273,234 from the prior year. Approximately
26% of this total amount, $ 1,820,214, constitutes unassigned fund balance, which s available for
spending at the City's discretion. The remainder of fund balance is deemed nonspendable,
restricted, committed or assigned to indicate it is not available for new spending because it has
already been categorized for a variety of purposes, such as futare spending or debt service

requirements; or because it is to be used solely for specific fund related expenditures.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal
car, unassigned fund balance of the general fund in the fund financial statements was
$2,003,995. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund
balance represents approximately 329 of total general fund expenditures excluding debt service
expenditures.

The fund balance of the City's general fund in the fund financial statements decreased by
$ 629,454 during the current fiscal year.

Proprietary Funds - The City's proprietary funds provide the same (ype of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Net assets of the
proprietary funds at the end of the year amounted to $ 8,507,850. Combining financial statements
of the proprietary funds can be found in pages 14 through 17 of the financial statements,
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets - The City's capital assets, less accumulated depreciation, for its
overnmental and business-type activities as of September 30, 2011 amounted to $ 8,405,835 and
10,729,333, respectively, and consist of land, construction in progress, buildings and
improvements, improvements other than buildings, vehicles, and machinery and equipment. A
more detailed schedule can be found on page 27 and 28 of the notes to the financial statements.

Debt - Excluding compensated absences, the City's debt totaled $ 10,042,495 at September
30, 2011. Total debt outstanding, excluding compensated absences, at the end of the prior fiscal
year was $ 9,459,425, The overall increase is attributable to the issuance of a new bond in the
current year. More information regarding the City’s debt can be found on page 29 through 31 of
the notes to the financial statements. Outstancf;ng debt as of September 30, 2011 and 2010
consisted of the following:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Aclivities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Long-term debt:
General obligation .
Note, Series 2010 $ 6,145000 $ - 3 - 3 - $ 6,145,000 % -
Note, Series 2008 - 6,250,000 - - - G,250,000
General obligation
Note, Series 2010 2,160,000 2,160,000 - - 2,160,000 2,160,000
Revolving State Loans - - 1,737,495 1,019,137 1,737,495 1,019,137
Capital leases - 30,288 - - - 30,288
Compensated absences 1,330,000 1,302,991 153,347 176,824 1,483,347 1,479 815
Total $ 9635000 $ 9,743,279 $ 1,800,842 $ 1,195961 $ 11,525,842 §_10,939.240
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
* General fund revenues were $ 392,032 less than the original budget. The primary reason

was that fines and forfeitures revenues did not meet anticipated budget amounts,

° General Fund expenditures were higher than the original budget by $ 239,274, The two
main areas were unanticipated legal expenses and some persomnel costs in the police
department.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City of North Bay Village's main source of revenues are obtained from a combination
of tax receipts from ad valorem property taxes, state revenue sharing and other taxes, franchise
fees, and receipts from building permit fees. The budget for fiscal year 2012 is based on the City's
best expectations of revenues from these sources and other smaller sources, and expenses are
based on historical data and known increases for the 2012 fiscal year.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of North Bay
Village's finances for all those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the
City Manager, City of North Bay Village, 1777 Kemnedy Causeway, Suite 132, North Bay
Village, FL, 33141.
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
September 30, 2011

Business-
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS:
Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 4,412,513 $ 595,955 5,008,468
Receivables, net 665,667 1,054,192 1,719,859
Internal balances 972,724 (972,724) -
Restricted cash - 460,635 460,635
Deferred charges 124,722 2,500 127,222
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 7,107,466 6,724,666 13,832,132
Depreciable, net 1,298,369 4,004,667 5,303,036
Total assets 14,581,461 11,869,891 26,451,352
LIARBILITIES:
Accounts payable 721,819 1,005,001 1,726,820
Accrued liabilities 195,461 127,159 322,620
Customer deposits - 339,039 339,039
Accrued interest payable 82,936 - 82,936
Due within one year:
Compensated absences payable 35,117 25,558 60,675
Bonds payable 372,857 171,921 544,778
Due in more than one year:
Compensated absences payable 1,294,883 127,789 1,422,672
Bonds payable 7,932,143 1,565,574 0,497,717
Total liabilities 10,635,216 3,362,041 13,997,257
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 1,914,249 8,991,838 10,906,087
Restricted for:
Transportation 260,184 - 260,184
Park improvements 357,468 - 357,468
Law enforcement © 951,820 - 951,820
Unrestricted net assets (deficit) 462,524 (483 ,988) (21,464)
Total net assets $ 3,946,245 $ 8,507,850 $ 12,454,005

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES “~
~
For the year ended September 30, 2011 &
Net (Expense) Revenue and ﬁd
Program Revemues Changes in Net Assets
Operating Capital Business-
Charges for Grants and Grants and Goverpmental type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental activities:
General government 1,628,104.40 3 63,842.00 3 - - (1,564,262.400 3 - $ (1,564,262)
Public safety 4,300,816.42 1,187,213.00 69,694.00 - (3,043,909.42) - (3,043,909
Building, planging and zoning 198,746.48 219,419.00 - - 20,672.52 - 20,673
Public works 633,389.92 - 214,742.00 31,880.00 (386,767.92) - (386,768)
Parks and recreation 79,364.00 - 17,980.00 - {61,384.60) - {61,385}
Intersst on long-term. debt 298,126.00 - - - (298,126.00) - (298,126)
Total governmental activities 7.138,547.82 1,470,474.00 302,416.00 31,880.00 (5,333,777.82) - (5,333,778)
Business-type activities:
Utility Fund 3,726,551.00 4,514,865.00 - 2,707,001.00 - 3,495,315 3,495,315
Stormwater Utility Fund 52,230.00 123,513.00 - - - 71,283 71,283
Totai business-type activities m,q.\.m,qw?oo 4,63%,378.00 - N.\Bﬂoa.oo - 3,566,598 3,566,598
Total $ 10,917,328.82 $ 6,108,852.00 $ 302,416.60 $ quwqmwﬂroo ¢5,333,777.82) 3,566,598 {1,767,180)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Ad valorem taxes 3,420,449 - 3,420,449
Franchise fees 384,644 - 384,644
Utility service taxes 434,136 - 434,136
Local option gas tax 105,942 - 105,542
Communication service tax 201,579 - 291,579
State revenue sharing 164,892 - 164,892
Local 1/2 cent sales tax 421,916 - 421,916
Other intergoveramental 12,368 - 12,368
Interest income 27,422 1,357 28,779
Miscellaneous 152,737 - 152,737
Transfers 217,264 (217,264) -
Total general revenues 5,633,349 (215,907 5,417,442
Change in net assets 299,571 3,350,691 3,650,262
Net assets, beginning 3,646,674 5,157,159 8,803,833
Net assets, ending $ 3,946,245 8 8,507,850 3 12,454,095

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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ASSETS:
Cash, cash equivalents
and investments
Receivables
Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES:
Liabitities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Law enforcement
Public works
Culture and recreation
Assigned to subsequent
year budget
Unassigned (Deficit)

Total fund
balances (Deficit)

Total liabilities
and fund
balances
{Deficit)

$

CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2011

Capital Federal Debt Nonmajor Total
General Projects Forfeiture Service Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
1,352,269 1,560,288 962,753 $ 188,876 $ 348,327 $ 4,412,513
604,575 - - - 61,093 065,668
802,147 353,327 - - 261,479 1,416,953
2,758,991 1,913,615 962,753 $ 188,876 $ 670,899 $ 6,495,134
504,239 207,613 8,493 $ b3 14714 $ 721,819
194,246 - 750 - 465 195,461
1,264 17,310 35,920 353,327 36,408 444 220
(99,749 224,923 45,163 353,327 38,347 1,361,500 '
- - 917,590 - 34,230 951,820
- 1,688,692 - - 260,184 1,948,876
- - - 357,468 357,468
55,247 - - - - 55,247
2,003,995 - - (164,451 (19,330) 1,820,214
2,059,242 1,688,692 217,590 (164.,451) 632,552 5,133,625
2,758,991 1,913,615 062,753 $ 188,876 3 670,899 $ 6,495,134

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION THE OF BALANCE SHEE
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2011

TOTAL FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
IN THE BALANCE SHEET, PAGE 10

Amounts reported for government

al activities in the statement of
net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
in the funds:

Governmental capital assets $ 12,452,897
Less accumulated depreciation

(4,047,062)

Financing costs related to the issuance of long-term debt are
expended by governmental funds in the fund financial
statements; under full accrual accounting these amounts are
treated as an asset and amortized over the life of the debt.

Long-term liabilities are not

due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, ar

¢ not reported in the governmental
funds:
Bonds payable . $ (8,305,000
Compensated absences (1,330,000)
Accrued interest payable

(82,937)

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL, ACTIVITIES, PAGE 8

T OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

$ 5,133,625

8,405,835

124,722

(9,717,937

$ 3,946,245
S ERA TN

2B()R

The accompanying notes (o basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements,
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the year ended September 30, 2011

Capital Federal Debt Nonmajor Total
General Projects Forfeitare Service Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund | Fund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 3,460,696 $ - $ - $ 393,885 $ 214,742 $ 4,069,323
Licenses and permits 219,419 - - - - 219,419
Franchise fees 384,640 - - - - 384,646
Intergovernmental revenue 1,066,391 31,880 - - 9,080 1,107,351
Charges for services 63,842 - - - - 63,842
Fines and forfeitures 117,341 - 1,070,602 - - 1,187,943
Interest income 17,202 9,062 1,066 - - 27,420
Other 93,925 - 58,083 - 8,900 160,908
Total revenues 5,423,552 40,942 1,129,751 393,885 232,722 7,220,852
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 1,509,407 - - - - 1,509,407
Public safety 3,920,559 - 265,345 - 8,772 4,194,676
Public works 534,270 - - - 68,599 602,869
Building, plansing
and zoning 175,007 - - - - 175,007
Parks and recreation 32,266 - - - 33,910 66,176
Capital outlay 12,811 498,957 55,246 - 7,288 574,302
Debt service:
Principal 6,280,285 - - 180,000 - 0,460,285
Tnterest and fiscal charges 75,417 - - 378,211 - 453,628
Total expenditures 12,540,022 498,957 320,591 558,211 118,569 14,036,350
Excess (deficiency)
of revenues )
over expenditures (7,116,470) . (458,015) 809,160 {164,326) 114,153 (6,815,498)
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 217,264 - - - 55,248 272,512
‘Transfers out (55,248) - - - - (55,248)
Drebt Proceeds 6,325,000 - - - - 6,325,000
Total other financing
sources (uses) 6,487,016 - - - 55,248 0,542,264
Net change in ‘
fund balance (629,454) (458,015) 809,160 (104,326) 169,401 (273,234)
FUND BALANCES,
beginning of year 2,688,696 2,146,707 108,430 (125 463,151 5,400,859
FUND BALANCES )
(Deficit), end of year $ 2,059,242 $ 1,688,692 $ 917,590 $ (164,451) § 632,552 $ 5,133,625

=

2 8()S

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

12



CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, PAGE 12 $ (273,234)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those
assets is depreciated over their estimated useful lives: ’

Expenditures for capital assets 572,796
Less current year provision for depreciation (263,772)

The issuance of long term debt provides current
financial resources to governmental funds; however
has no effect on net assets:

Bond proceeds {6,325,000)

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long term
liabilities in the statement of net assets. 6,460,285

Governmental funds report the effect of costs of issnance
when debt is first issued; whereas, these amounts are deferred
and amortized in the statement of activities. 70,000

Certain items reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore
are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds: ' i

Change in accrued interest payable $ 94,788
Change in long-term compensated absences - (27,009)
Amortization of bond issuance costs (9,283) 58,496

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES,
PAGE 9 $ 299,571

LBC)T
The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. '
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA

ASSETS:
Clurrent assets:

Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Restricted cash

Customer accounts receivable

QOther receivables

Due from other funds

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Deferred charges
Capital assets:

Non-depreciable

Depreciable, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Due to other funds

Payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits

Current portion of compensated
absences payable

Current portion of debt

Total current liabilities

Long term liabilities:

Compensated absences payable
Debt

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted net assets (deficit)

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPIETARY FUNDS
September 30, 2011

Business-Type Activities

Enterprise Funds
Major Nonmajor
Fund Fund
Stormwater
Utility Utility
Fund Fund
289,269 $ 306,686
460,635 -
372,847 30,389
650,956 -
1,264 -
1,774,971 337,075
2,500 -
6,724,660 -
3,563,382 441,285
12,065,519 $ 778,360
1,003,501 3 1,500
127,159 -
973,988 -
339,039 -
25,558 -
171,921 -
2,641,166 1,500
127,789 -
1,565,574 -
1,693,363 -
4,334,529 1,500
8,550,553 441,285
(819,563) 335,575
7,730,990 776,860
12,065,519 $ 778,360

$

$

Total

595,955
460,635
403,236
650,956

1,264

2,112,046

2,500

6,724,666
4,004,667

12,843,879

1,005,001
127,159
973,988

339,039

25,558
171,921

2,642,666

127,789
1,565,574

1,693,363

4,336,029

8,991,838
(483,988)

8,507,850

12,843,879

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PROPIETARY FUNDS

For the year endeed September 30, 2011

OPERATING REVENUES;
Sanitation charges
Sewer charges
Metered water charges
Service fees and late penalties
Stormwater user fees

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Payroll and related expenses
Sewage disposal fees
Materials, supplies, repairs and other
‘Water purchases
Solid waste disposal and recycling services

Provision for uncollected accounts receivable.

Provision for depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Operating income
- NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES):
Grant revenues
Interest income
Interest expense

Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses)

TRANSFERS:
Transfers out

Total transfers
Change in net assets
NET ASSETS, beginning of year

NET ASSETS, end of year

$

$

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Major
Fond

Utility
Fund

1,487,069
1,449,172
1,433,041

145,583

e ——

4,514,865

1,223,465
764,701
523,563
660,887
366,244
(21,888)

15152

3,692,124

822,741

2,660,844
1,357

(34,427)

2,621,714

(217,264)
(217,264)

3,233,251
4,497,739

7,730,950

Nonmajor
Fund
Stormwater
Utility
Fund

9,449
114,064

123,513

15,854

2,910
33,466

52,230

71,283

46,157

46,157

117,440

659,420
716,860

$

Total

1,487,069
1,449,172
1,433,041
155,032
114,064

4,638,378

1,223,465
764,701
539,417
660,887
366,244
(18,978)
208,618

3,744,354

894,024

2,707,001
1,357
(34,427

2,673,931

(217,264)
(217,264)

3,350,691

3,157,159

8,507,850
—————

LBA) Y

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statemenis.
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CASH FL.OWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers

o R LR

i

Net cash provided by
operating activities

: CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition of capital assets

Proceeds from capital grants

"Transfers from other funds

Proceeds from SRF loans

Repayments of SRF loans

Interest paid

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

’ - CASH FLOWS FROM
3 INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Taterest received

Net cash provided by
investing activities

Net increase in
cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ending

} CASIH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

.\ REPORTED ON THE STATEMENT OF

; NET ASSETS:

: Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Restricted cash

CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPIETARY FUNDS
For the year ended September 30, 2011

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Major
Fund

Utility
Fund

$ 4,495,900
(1,246,942)

(2,569,390)

679,568

(3,966,580)
3,085,342
(376,977)
839,405
(121,047)

(29,981)

(569,838)

1,357

1,357

111,087

638,817

3 749,904

b 289,269

460,635

$ 749,904

Nonmajor
Fund
Stormwater
Utility
TFund

$ 113,472

(26,705)

86,767

(97,615)
46,157

(51,458)

35,300

271,377

B 306,686

$ 306,686

$ ___ 306,686

Total

$ 4,609,372
(1,246,942)
(2,596,095)

766,335

(4,064,195)
3,131,499
(376,977)
839,405
(121,047)
(29,981)

(621,296)

1,357

1,357

146,396

910,194

E=s]

1,056,590

$ 595,955
460,633

$ 1,056,590

280)W

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

(continued)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Major Nonmajor
Fund Fund
Stormwater
Utility Utility
Fund Fund - _Totai
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income $ 822,741 $ 71,283 S 894,024
ADIUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE
OPERATING INCOME TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Provision for depreciation 175,152 33,466 208,618
(Increase) decrease in:
Receivables (19,613) (10,041) (29,654)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (275,883) (7,941) (283,824)
- Customer deposits 648 - 648
Compensated absences (23.477) - (23,477
Total adjustments (143,173) 15,484 (127,689)
Net cash provided by
operating activities $ 679,568 $ 86,767 $ 766,335
o —— T -__-'-—ﬁ.—'—'—-—-___,___

The accompanying notes to basic financial

DRE)Y

statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of North Bay Village, Florida (the "City") have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The more significant accounting policies of the City are described
below.

The City is located in Miami-Dade County, Florida and was incorporated in 1945 as a
municipality under the laws of the State of Florida. The City operates under the Commission-
Manager form of government, with the legislative function vested in a five member City
Commission. The City provides the following services as authorized by its charter: general
government, public safety, water and sewer, sanitation, public works, planning and zoning,
building inspection, code enforcement, health and social services, culture and recreation.

Reporting Entity:

In accordance with GASB pronouncements, the City's financial statements include all
funds, departments, agencics, boards, and other organizations over which City officials are
considered to be financially accountable.

Financial accountability includes such aspects as appointment of a component unit's
governing body members, budget review, approval of property tax levies, outstanding debt
secured by the full faith credit of the City or its revenue stream, and responsibility for funding
deficits.

In evaluating how to define the government, for financial reporting purposes, management
has considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit
in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Based upon the application of these criteria, the City has no funds, agencies,
boards, commissions and authorities considered potential component units.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements:

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the City. The
~effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reporied separately
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or identifiable activity. Program revenues include 1) charges
to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or identifiable activity and 2) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

) 280)Y



CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Measurement Focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation:

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary
fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
- measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
~soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose the City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60
days after year end. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred as required
by accrual accounting, except for debt service expenditures and compensated absences, which are
recorded when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due
within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the government.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:
o General Fund - this is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all

financial resources of the general government except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

o Capital Projects Fund - this fund accounts for the acquisition or construction of
various major capital projects.

. Federal Forfeitures Fund - this fund accounts for certain expenditures of legally
restricted fund received from government agencies.

. Debt Service Fund - this fund accounts for the collection and payment of debt.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

. Utility Fund - used to account for the City's water and sewer utility system,
which is financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises. The intent of the City is that the costs (expenses including
depreciation) of providing services to the general public on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict .guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The City also has the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 02 8 é ) Z
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City's water and
sewer function and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort
the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants
and coniributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes,

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting these definitions are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Deposits and investments:

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less when purchased. The City's cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, demand deposits, and investments in money market funds. The City's
investments include certificates of deposit and investments with the Local Government Surplus
Funds Trust Fund administered by the State Board of Administration.

All investments of the City are recorded at fair value. For the purpose of the statement of
cash flows for the proprietary funds, cash equivalents mean short-term, highly liquid investments
with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Allowance for doubtful accounts:

The City considers all amounts receivable in the governmental funds to be fully collectible;
consequently, no allowance for doubtful accounts was estimated. An allowance of $ 164,846 was
deemed necessary for the proprietary funds. This is the amount of the past due and penalties due
accounts as of September 30, 2011.

Interfund transactions:

As the City does not have any lending/borrowing arrangements between funds, all
outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds". All amounts
receivable from or payable to other funds are to be settled with expendable, available financial
resources. Transactions which are recurring annual transfers between two or more funds are
recorded as transfers in and out. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial staternents as

"internal balances." _ _
) 2B O)AA



CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL.ORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
| September 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Restricted assets:

Certain resources set aside for the repayment of certain debt are classified as restricted
assets on the statements of net assets or the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable
loan covenants. Additionally, some monies received are restricted for specific uses and the City
reports amounts paid by customers for water and sewer deposits as restricted assets.

Capital assets:

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, improvements other than
buildings, machinery and equipment, vehicles, and infrastructure assets (e.g., sidewalks and other
similar items grouped within buildings and improvements and improvements other than buildings),
are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $ 750 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported
by governmental activities) the City chose not to include such items until after the implementation
of GASB 34 in fiscal year 2004. As the government constructs or acquires additional capital
assets each period, including infrastructure assets after 2004, they are capitalized and reported at
historical cost. The reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs which are essentially
amounts spent in relation to capital assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item
or extend its useful life beyond the original estimate. In the case of donations, the government
values these capital assets at the estimated fair value of the item at the date of its donation.

_ Capital assets of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Improvements other than building 30-40 years
Buildings and improvements 10-30 years
Vehicles 5 years
Machinery and equipment 3-5 years
Equipment and vehicles 3-5 years

Compensated absences:

City employees are granted vacation, sick and compensatory leave in varying amounts
based on length of service. Upon separation in good standing, employees receive full
reimbursement for accumulated vacation and compensatory hours, as well as reimbursement for
sick hours if the required length of service is met. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in
the government-wide and proprietary funds and reported as a liability. The current portion of this
obligation is estimated based on historical trends. Compensated absences that are expected to be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported as expenditures and a fund
liability of the applicable governmental fund.

AB)ER
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Long-term obligations:

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in
the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or propriety fund type statement of
net assets, Bond discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond discounts. Bond issuance
costs, if any, are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. In
the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Payments of principal and interest are reported as debt service
expenditures. :

Net assets/fund balance:;

In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net assets and is
displayed in three components:

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - consists of capital assets net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,
mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction or improvements of those assets.

b. Restricted net assets - consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either
by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and
regulations of other governments, or 2} law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation,

C. Unrestricted net assets - all other net assets that do not meet the definition of
"restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt."

Fund balance:

During the year, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This statement requires that governmental fund financial
statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based
primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for
which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent.

The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because
they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required
to be maintained intact. “Not in spendable form” includes items that are not
expected to be converted to cash (such as inventories and prepaid amounts) and
items such as long-term amount of loans and notes receivable, as well as property
acquired for resale. The corpus (or principal) of a permanent fund is an example of
an amount that is legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
L2B(1)cc
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Restricted: This classification includes amounis for which constraints have been
placed on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as
through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Commission.
These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Commission
removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action (ordinance
or resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially committed.
Resources accumulated pursuant to stabilization arrangements sometimes are
reported in this category.

Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s
intent to be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed.
This intent can be expressed by the Commission or through the Commission
delegating this responsibility to City management.

Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General
Fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other
funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes
within the General Fund. Unassigned fund balance may also include negative
balances for any governmental fund if expenditures excced amournts restricted,
committed or assigned for those specific purposes. In addition, amounts deemed by
the City ordinances as minimum fund balance requirements are included in this
category. Section 35.22 of the City Code of Ordinances requires a reserve of 20%
cannot be achieved then the next two years the City will increase the fund balance to
meet this requirement. Based on these criteria, the City has met the reserve
required in the general fund.

During the year certain funds disclosed deficit fund balances. Those funds reporting deficit
fund balances are as follows:

Childrens Services Fund $ {19,330)
Debt Service Fund $ (164,451)

The City expects to absorb the deficits in the above funds through transfers from the
general fund in order to cure these reported deficits.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management's knowledge of current
events and actions it may undertake in the future, acival results may uliimately differ from those

estimates. Q 8 é )ﬂﬂ
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY TAXES

Under Florida Law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county,
municipal and school board property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the Connty Property
Appraiser and County Tax Collector. The laws of the State regulating tax assessments are also
designed to assure a consistent property valuation method statewide. State statutes permit
municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10.0 mills. The tax rate to finance general
governmental services for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 was $ 5.2780 per $ 1,000 of
assessed taxable property value. The rate of $ 5.2780 is allocated to the general fund and debt
service fund, with the general fund receiving $ 4.7772, the debt service fund $ 0.5008.

~ The tax levy of the City is established by the City Commission prior to October 1 each
year, and the County Property Appraiser incorporates the millage into the total tax levy, which
includes Miami-Dade County, Miami-Dade County School Board and various special taxing
districts. All property is reassessed according to its fair market value as of January 1 each year, at
which time taxes become an enforceable lien on property. Each assessment roll is submitted to the
Executive Director of the State Department of Revenue for review to determine if the roll meets
all of the appropriate requirements of State statutes. State of Florida Amendment #10 to the
Florida Constitution known as "Save our Homes" limits assessment increases on homestead
property to the lesser of 3% or the Consumer Price Index.

All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1 each year
or as soon as practicable thereafter as the assessment roll is certified by the County Property
Appraiser. Miami-Dade County mails to each property owner on the assessment roll a notice of
the taxes due and Miami-Dade County also collects the taxes for the City. Taxes may be paid
upon receipt of such notice from Miami-Dade County, with discounts at the rate of four percent
(4%) if paid in the month of November, three percent (3%) if paid in the month of December, two
percent (2%) if paid in the month of January and one percent (1%) if paid in the month of
February. Taxes paid during the month of March are without discount, and all unpaid taxes on
real and tangible personal property become delinquent and liens are placed on April 1 of the year
following the year in which taxes were assessed. Procedures for the collection of delinquent taxes
by Miami-Dade County are provided for in the laws of Florida. State law provides for
enforcement of collection of personal property taxes by seizure of the property, by the sale of the
property, or by the sale of interest bearing tax certificates to satisfy unpaid property taxes. The
procedures result in the collection of essentially all taxes prior to July 31 of the year following the
year of assessment,

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits:

In addition to insurance provided by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation,
deposits which consist of cash on hand and interest bearing checking accounts are held in banking
institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the State of Florida to hold public funds. Under
Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits Act, the State Treasurer
requires all Florida qualified public depositories to deposit with the Treasurer or another banking
institution eligible collateral. In the event of a failure of a qualified public depository, the
remaining public depositories would be responsible for covering any resulting losses. Therefore,

all amounts presented as deposits are insured or collateralized.
2BU)EE
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Restricted cash:

Restricted cash consists $ 339,039 of customer deposits held in the Utility Fund. These
funds are owed back to custorners when the discontinue service. Additionally, $ 121,596 is
required to be held in a depository account in accordance with the City’s State Revolving Fund
loans (Note 7).

Investments:

As required by Florida Statutes, the City has adopted an investment policy designating the
investments which are allowable of its cash management activities. The authorized investments
include US bonds and obligations, fully insured or collateralized certificates of deposit, Securities
and Exchange Commission ("SEC") registered money market funds, bankers acceptances, reverse
repurchase agreements, local government investment pools and certain mutual funds registered
with the SEC and the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (administered by the State of
Florida Board of Administration). 'The investments follow the investment rules defined in Florida
Statutes Chapter 215. The investment policy defined in the statutes attempts to promote, through
state assistance, the maximization of net interest earnings on invested surplus funds of local units
of governments while limiting the risk to which the funds are exposed.

The City is authorized to invest in obligations of the United States Treasury, its agencies,
instrumentalities and the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund administered by the State
Board of Administration. The investments follow the investment rules defined in Florida Statutes
Chapter 215. The investment policy defined in the statutes attempts to promote, through state
assistance, the maximization of net investment carnings on invested surplus funds of local units of
governments while limiting the risk to which the funds are exposed.

The City invests surplus funds in an external investment pooi, the Local Government
Surplus Funds Trust Fund (the “State Pool”). The State Pool is administered by the Florida State
Board of Administration (“SBA”), who provides regulatory oversight. The SBA previously
reported that the State Pool was exposed to potential risks due to indirect exposure in the subprime
mortgage financial market. Consequently, the SBA placed some restrictions on how participants
could access portions of their surplus funds and ultimately restructured the State Pool into two
separate pools (“Florida PRIME” and “Fund B”).

The Florida PRIME has adopted operating procedures consistent with the requirement for a
2a7-like fund. The City's investment in the Florida PRIME is reported at amortized cost. The fair
value of the position in the pool is equal to the value of the pool shares.

The Fund B is reported at fair value, determined by the fair value per share of the pool's
underlying portfolio.

As of September 30, 2011, the City had the following investments:

Investment
Fair Maturities
Value (in years)
Florida Prime $ 31,519 Less than 1
Fund B 21,289 6-10

s 2 BO)FF
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Interest rate risk:

The City has an investment policy of structuring the investment portfolio so that the
securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to
sell securities on the open market prior to maturity and investing operating funds primarily in
short-term securities, money market mutual funds, or similar investment pools. The weighted
average maturity of the securities held in Florida Prime is 52 days. The weighted average life of
the securities held by Fund B is 7.49 years. However, because Fund B consists of restructured or
defaulted securities, there is considerable uncertainty regarding the weighted average life.

Credit risk:

The City’s investment policy limits investments to the highest ratings issued by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization (NRSRO). The Florida PRIME is rated AAA by
Standard and Poor’s; the Fund B is not rated by an NRSRO. -

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

As of September 30, 2011, receivables for the City’s individual major funds and nonmajor “
fund, including applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Non-major Stormwater
General Special Utility Utility
Fund Revenue Funds Fund Fund Total
Customers billed $ 167,487 $ - $ 372,847 % 30,389 § 570,723
Intergoverninental 417,009 61,093 650,956 - 1,129,058
Miscellaneous 20,079 - - - 20,079
$ 604,575 0§ 61,003 $§ 1,023,803 % 30,389 $ 1,719,860

As of September 30, 2011 accounts payable and accrued liabilities for the City’s individual
major and non-major funds are as follows:

Capital Federal Non-major Stormwater
General Projects Forfieture Special Utility Utility
Fund Fund Fund Revenue Funds Fund Fund Total
Vendors $ 504,239 3% 45521 % 8,493 % 1474 $ 316,200 % 1,500 $ 877,428
Contractor - 162,092 - - 687,300 - 849,392
$ 504,239 § 207,613 % 8493 § 1,474 $ 1,003,501 % 1,500 $ 1,726,820
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset actii/ity for the year ended September 30, 2011 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated;
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not
being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated: -
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets,
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net

Governmental activities
capital assets, net

Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction in progress

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Improvements other
than equipment
Equipment and vehicles

Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Improvements other
than equipment
Equipment and vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net

Business-type activities
capital assets, net

$

$

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
5,138,008 - . $ 5,138,008
1,466,407 503,051 - 1,969,458
6,604,415 503,051 - 1,107 466
2,608,761 - - 2,608,761

979,646 - - 979,646
1,687,279 09,745 - 1,757,024
5,275,686 09,745 - 5,345,431
1,391,405 128,225 - 1,519,630

827,879 66,031 - 893,910
1,564,006 69,516 - 1,633,522
3,783,290 263,772 - 4,047,062
1,492,396 (194,027) - 1,298,369
8,096,811 309,024 - $__ 8,405,835
2,807,748 3,916,918 - $__ 6,724,666
7,196,540 147,277 - 7,343,817
1,229,361 - - 1,229 361
8,425,901 147,277 - 8,573,178
3,148,867 202,228 - 3,351,095
1,211,026 0,390 - 1,217 416
4,359,893 208,618 - 4,568,511
4,066,008 (61,341) - 4,004,667
6,873,756 3,855,577 - $ 10,729.,333
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
: NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Depreciation expense for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 was charged to
functions/programs as follows: '

Governmental Activities:

General government - $ 118,697
Public safety 79,132
Public works 29,015
Parks and recreation 23,739
Building, planning and zoning 13,189
Total depreciation expense -
governmental activities $ 263,772
Business-Type Activities:
Water and sewer systems $ 175,152
Stormwater Utility 33,466

Total depreciation expense -
business-type activities $ 208,618

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Due from and to other funds at September 30, 2011 are summarized as follows:

Due From
Capital Federal Debt Non major
General Projects Forfieture Service Revenue Utility
Fund Pund Fund Fund Special Furxds Fund Total

Due To:

General Fund $ - % 17,310 $ - % - % 36,408 $ 748,429 % 802,147
Capital Projects Fund - 353,327 - - 353,327
Non major Special

Revenue Funds - 35,920 - - 225,559 261,479
Utilities 1,264 - - - - 1,264

Total 3 1,264 % 17,310 % 35,920 § 353,327 % 36,408 $ 973,988 $ 1,418,217

—————r—— | _——rrrmmstt————
I ——— e S

These balances result from the time lag between the dates (1) Inter-fund goods and services
are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting
system, and (3) payments are actually made between funds.
Inter-fund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2011 are summarized as follows:

Transfer Out

General Utilities
Fund Fund Total
Transfer To:
General Fund $ - $ 217,264 % 217,264
Transportation Fund 55,248 - 55,248

Total $ 55248 § 217264 $ 272,51 ,23 ﬁ /II
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DERT

The following is a summary of changes in debt for the year ended September 30, 2011

October 1, September 30, Due Within
2010 Additions Payments 2011 One Year
Governmental Activities:
General obligation note,
Series 2008 $ 6,250,000 $ - $ 6,250,000 3 - $ -
- General obligation note,

Series 2010 - 2,160,000 - - 2,160,000 102,857
General obligation note, - 6,325,000 180,000 6,145,000 270,000
-Series 2010 Amended
Capital leases 30,285 - 30,285 - -
Compensated absences 1,302,991 27,009 - 1,330,000 35,117

Total governmental
activities debt § 9743276 $ 6,352,009 $ 0,460,285 $ 9,635,000 $ 407,974
T i eputiuiet;ol et ool I tfed kil
Business-Type Activities; ‘
Revolving state loans $ 1,019,137 3 845,056 $ 120,698 $ 1,737,495 $ 171,921
" Compensated absences 176,824 - 23,477 153,347 25,558
Total business-type
activities debt $ 1,195,961 ) 845,056 $ 150,175 $ 1,890,842 $ 197,479
= — e = o — e =m——ee

Governmental activities:

During the year the City refinanced $ 6,250,000 General Obligation Note with the
proceeds of a § 6,325,000 General Obligation note. The proceeds were used to legally defease
the original note and to pay costs of the refinancing. Commencing on December 1, 2010, interest
of 3.51% is payable semiannually on December 1 and June 1 through the maturity date of June 1,
2028. Principal shall be payable on an annual basis commencing June 1, 2011.

The defeasement resulted in an economic gain of $ 767,577 (difference between the
present value of the old and new debt service payments).

Refunded debt:
2008 GO Note
Principal payments $ 6,250,000
Interest payments 3,317,613

Debt stream on refunded debt 9,567,613

Refunding debt;
2010 GO Note

Principal payments 6,325,000
Interest payments 2,263,472
Debt stream on refunded debt 8,588,472

Aggregate savings in debt services $ 979,141

I
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' September 30, 2011

i

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

In fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, the City borrowed $ 2,160,000 relating to a

General Obligation Note, Series 2010 for purpose of financing all or a part of the costs of (i) the

creation and improvement of parks and recreational opportunities, (ii) the construction of a Public

Safety and City Hall complex, (iii) landscaping and aesthetic improvements to the John F.

Kennedy Causeway, and (iv) related capital costs. The note is secured by the proceeds of ad

valorem taxes levied on all taxable property in the City. Commencing December 1, 2011,

i~ interest of 3.80% is payable semi-annually and principal is payable annually of $ 102,857 on
December 1 of each year through the maturity date of December 31, 2031,

; Business-type activities — revolving state loans:

The City has four separate state revolving loan agreements with the Department of
Environmental Protection. The loans provided for funding for various sewer improvement projects
, on a cost reimbursement basis. Pursuant to the terms of the individual agreements, the City began
o making semi-annual principal and interest payments on the loans one year subsequent to the

completion of the projects. The City is required to pledge revenues equal to 1.15 times the sums of
the semi-annual payments due in any fiscal year, and must maintain an amount equal to or greater
than five-sixths of the semi-annual payment in a depository account. At September 30, 2011, the
City was in compliance with these covenants. The significant terms of the loans are as follows:

e R

g Revolving state loan of $ 282,370 dated March 17, 1995;
interest rate of 3.79%. As an amendment to the original loan,
in June 1997 the City was awarded an additional $ 1,597,000
at an interest rate of 2.7%. The City makes semi-annual
principal and interest payments of $ 33,797 on March 15 and
- September 15. The loan matures on September 15, 2018 and
is collateralized by water and sewer revenues. $ 426,396

Revolving state loan of $ 755,000; interest rate of 2.9%. The
City makes semi-annual principal and interest payments of
$ 23,507 on March 15 and September 15. The loan matures
on September 15, 2016 and is collateralized by water and
sewer revenues, 216,845

Revolving state loan of $ 380,000 dated September 30, 1993;
interest rate of 2.7%. As an amendment to the original loan,
in October 1994 the City was awarded an additional
$ 188,000 at an interest rate of 3.24%. The City makes semi-
annual principal and interest payments of $ 18,211 on
January 1 and July 1. The loan matures on July 1, 2014 and
is collateralized by water and sewer revenues. 103,957

Revolving state loan of $ 1,079,032 dated December 24,
2009; interest rate of 1.9%. The amounts of the semiannual
payments for each loan will be calculated based on the actual
amount of the principal drawn under the agreement, as well
as associated capitalized interest and loan service fees.
Payments will be due semiannually November 15 and May
15 at a present amount of $ 32,929 with any final amounts to
be determined when project is complete. 990,297

$ 1,737,495

2B0)KK
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Combined aggregate maturities for all long-term debt for each of the next five years and to
~ maturity are as follows:

Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

Se er “Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2012 $ 372,857 % 295,815  § 668,672 ¥ 17,921 % 39,551 $ 211,472
2013 387,857 282,430 670,287 176,528 34,944 211,472
2014 392,857 268,518 661,375 181,262 30,209 211,471
2015 402,857 254,430 657,287 149,444 25,606 175,050
2016 412,857 239,91 652,848 153,379 21,671 175,050

2017-2021 2,234,285 970,392 3,204,677 368,134 69,262 437,396

2022-2026 2,559,285 548,880 3,108,163 261,563 40,645 302,210

2027-2031 1,435,285 117,365 1,556,650 275,262 14,279 289,541
2032 102,860 1,954 104,814 - - -

$ 8,305,000 $_ 2,979,775 $ 11,284,775 $ 1,737,495 $ 276,167 $ . 2,013,662

_....__._—._._———_.._._—-_..._———-.__...—-——

NOTE 8 - FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The City participates in the Florida Retirement System (the "System"), a multiple-employer
cost sharing Public Employee Retirement System ("PERS"). The Division of Retirement,
Department of Administration of the State of Florida administers the System. All rates, benefits
and amendments are established by the State of Florida through its legislative body. Employees of
the City who are employed in a full-time or part-time regularly established position participate in
the System.

The System has various classes of memberships. City employees fall under "Regular
Class," which consists of members of the System who do not qualify for membership in the
Special Risk, Special Risk Administrative Support, Elected Officer, or Senior Management
Service Classes.

Normal retirement for the Regular, Elected Officer, and Senior Management Service Class
is at 6 years of credited service and age 62 or at 30 years of credited service, regardless of age.
Normal retirement for the Special Risk Class (police) is at 6 years of credited service and age 55
or at 25 years of credited service, regardless of age. Service retirement benefits are computed on
the basis of age and/or years of service, average final compensation (the average of the five
highest fiscal years' earnings), and service credit. '

Benefits vest after six years of credited service. Early retirement may be taken any time
after vesting; however, there is a five percent benefit reduction for each year prior to normal
retirement age or date. The System also provides disability and survivor benefits. Benefits are
established by State statute.

Funding policy:

Employees cannot contribute to the System. The City is required by statute to contribute
10.77%, 14.57% and 23.25% of salaries through June 2011 and starting July 2011 4.91%,
14.10% and 6.27% for regular, senior management and special risk members, respectively. In
addition employees are required to contribute 3% starting July 2011. Employees within 5 years of
retirement may elect to participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Program ("DROP"). The
DROP allows an employee to retire while continuing employment, for a maximum of 60 months,
and defer their monthly retirement benefit to an interest-bearing account. The City contributes
4.42% of salaries for participants of the DROP. During 2011 the City had no employees

participating in this program.
5 2 B8()LL
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 8 - FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued)

The contribution requirements of covered payroll and actual contributions made for the
fiscal year ending September 30, 2011 and the two preceding years were as follows:

2011 2010 2009

Contributions requirements $ 528,832 $ 603271 § 558,502
Contributions made (100%) $ 528,832 $ 603,271 § 558,502
Total covered payroll $ 3,198,341 $ 3,477,674 § 3,329,822

Percent of contributions
to total covered payroll 16.53% 17.35% 16.77%

NOTE 9 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

On September 15, 1998, the City adopted Resolution No. 98-17 providing for a final and
total distribution of the defined benefit retirement system assets and termination of the Plan. The
City terminated the Plan and rolled over all active employee balances into the 401(a) defined
coniribution plan for general employees. All except seven of the Plan’s participants chose to
receive lump sum distributions for their retirement benefits. The seven participants opted to
continue to receive their monthly benefit payments. During 1999, the City purchased anmuity
contracts from an insurance company for those participants.

Department heads:

The City previously adopted a defined contribution plan in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 401 (a). The Plan provides a retirement program for each of the department
heads. Covered employees are eligible upon employment with the City, The 401(a) Plan provides
for required employer and employee contributions of 15% and 5.5% of employee earnings for the
Plan year, respectively.

Employer contributions vest ratably over five years based on the participant's hire date. In
addition, the Plan allows for loans of up to 50% of the participant's vested balance. Plan
amendments must be approved by the City Commission. The City contributed § 45,039 for the
year ended September 30, 2011. The Plan is held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the
participants and their beneficiaries. Consequently, the City has no fiduciary responsibility;
therefore, the net assets of the Plan are not included in the City's financial statements.

General employees:

The City previously adopted a defined contribution plan in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 401 (2). In a prior year, the City terminated its defined benefit plan (Note
IV-J-2) and the balances for all active employees were rolled over into the defined contribution
plan, The Plan provides a retirement program for all general employees. Covered employees are
eligible upon employment with the City. The 401(a) Plan provides for required employer and
employee contributions of 13.5% and 5.5% of employee earnings for the Plan year, respectively.

L BG)mM
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 9 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN (continued)

Employer contributions vest after three years of service through year seven based on the
participant's hire date. In addition, the Plan allows for loans of up to 50% of the participant's
vested balance. Plan amendments must be approved by the City Commission.  The City
contributed $ 62,898 for the year ended September 30, 2011. The Plan is held in trust for the
exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. Consequenily, the City has no
fiduciary responsibility; therefore, the net assets of the Plan are not included in the City's financial
statements.

NOTE 10.- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation:

The City is involved in various proceedings involving certain claims which the City
believes to be covered by its general liability insurance policies. Additionally, the City is
vigorously defending claims for the termination of employees in the normal course of business. In
the opinion of management and its legal counsel, the outcome of these claims should not have a
significant impact on the City's financial condition.

Risk management:

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, and natural disastets for which the City carries
commercial insurance. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage
in the prior year and there were no settlements that exceeded insurance coverage for each of the
past three years. The City provides employee medical benefits through commercial insurance
coverage.

Grants contingency:

The City receives grants from governmental agencies that require compliance with certain
provisions stated in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by their grantor agencies.
Failure to comply with the provisions or the results of any grantor audit could result in the return
of funds and are subject to audit by their grantor agencies. Management of the City deems the
likelihood of this contingency remote since, in its opinion, the City has complied in all material
respects with the provisions of the grants.

Post-employment benefits:

The City does not provide post-retirement benefits to retired employees.
The City had an independent company perform the required Other Post-Employment

Benefit (OPEB) report. The firm evaluated the City’s post-employment benefit obligation and
determined that as of September 30, 2011 none existed.
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Operating lease agreement:

The City entered into an operating lease for the rental of an office facility for a period of
five years beginning January 2011. The lease calls for monthly payments of approximately
$ 14,200. Total expense in connection with this lease amounted to approximately $ 171,000 for
the year ended September 30, 2011. Future minimum lease payments for the remainder of the
lease are approximately as follows: :

Year Ended
September 30 Amount

2012 $ 175,900
2013 $ 188,800
2014 $ 203,600
2015 $ 218,500
2016 $ 55,500

Thereafter $ NONE

NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Since the end of September 2011, the City has had several major changes in the legislative

- and management of the City, The City Commission in November 2011 appointed two new

Commissioners to fill existing vacancies. The City in December 2011, hired a new City manager
and in April 2012, the Finance Director was replaced.

Operationally, the City completed the majority of the Causeway Improvement project as
well as completing a major park in the City. The sanitary sewer force main was completed during
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, The City also moved forward with the new City Hall
construction project with the demolition of the vacant City Hall.

2B()00
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
(continued)

For the year ended September 30, 2011

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
EXPENDITURES:
General government:
City Commission:
Personal services 36,573 36,573 36,636 (63)
Operating expenditures 32,700 32,700 26,877 5,823
Total city commission 69,273 69,273 63,513 5,760
City Manager:
Personal services 106,563 106,563 48,270 58,293
Operating expenditures 8,300 8,300 4,235 4,065
Total city manager 114,863 114,863 52,505 62,358
City Clerk: |
Personal services ‘ 150,636 150,636 154,962 (4,326)
Operating expenditures 34,392 34,392 23,711 10,681
Total city clerk 185,028 185,028 178,673 6,355
Finance:
Personal services 123,525 123,525 125,620 (2,095)
Operating expenditures 4,390 4,390 3,395 995
Total finance 127,915 127,915 129,015 (1,100)
City Attorney: 7
Operating expenditores 200,000 200,000 435,529 (235,529)
Total city attorney 200,000 200,000 435,529 (235,529)
Nondepartmental: ,
Personal services 99,484 99,484 96,205 3,279
Operating expenditures 697,462 697,462 553,967 143,495
Capital cutlay 45,500 45,500 5,198 40,302
Total nondepartmental 842,446 842,446 655,370 187,076
Total general government 1,539,525 1,539,525 1,514,605 24,920
Public safety:
Personal services 3,523,214 3,523,214 3,689,316 (166,102)
Operating expenditures 195,643 T 195,643 231,243 (35,600)
Capital outlay 36,480 36,480 7,613 28,867
Total public safety 3,755,337 3,755,337 3,928,172 (172,835)

See noies to budgetary comparison schedule. OQ— B é ) @ @
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAIL FUND
(continued)

For the year ended September 30, 2011

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Puablic works:
Personal services 164,993 164,993 134,835 30,158
Operating expenditures 337,000 337,000 399,435 (62,435)
Total public works 501,993 501,993 534,270 (32,277
Building, planning and zoning:
Personal services 68,002 68,002 67,980 22
Operating expenditures 74,698 74,698 107,027 (32,329)
Total building, planning and zoning 142,700 142,700 175,007 (32,307)
Parks and recreation; '
Personal services 21,315 21,315 18,588 2,727
Operating expenditures 14,878 14,878 13,678 1,200
Total parks and recreation 36,193 36,193 | 32,260 3,927
Debt service:
Principal 6,325,000 6,325,000 6,280,285 44,715
Interest and fiscal charges - - 75,417 (75,417
Total debt service 6,325,000 6,325,000 6,355,702 (30,702)
Total expenditures 12,300,748 12,300,748 12,540,022 (239,274)
Excess (deficiencies) of revenues
over expenditures (6,485,160) {6,485,160) (7,116,466) (631,306)
OTHE FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt Proceeds 6,325,000 6,325,000 6,325,000 -
Transfers in 215,408 215,408 217,264 (1,856)
Transfers out (55,248) (55,248) (55,248) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 6,485,160 6,485,160 6,487,016 (1,856)
Net change in fund balance $ - $ - $ (629,450) % (633,162)

See notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
September 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The City legally adopts annual budgets for the general fund, most of the special revenue
funds, and the utility funds.

The budgets are prepared on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. At least 45 days prior to the close of the fiscal year, the City
Commission is presented with a proposed budget including proposed expenditures and the means
of financing them, After Commission review and public hearings, the budget is adopted prior to
October 1. Budgets are approved on a fund-by-fund basis and management may fransfer amounts
between line items in departments as long as the transfer does not amount to more than 5% of the
total budget of each department. All other budgetary transfers must be approved by resolution of
the City Commission. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental
level. :

Budgets are considered a management control and planning tool and as such are
incorporated into the accounting system of the City. The City Commission, by motion, may make
supplemental appropriations for the year up to the amount of revenues in excess of those
estimated. Appropriations not encumbered lapse at year-end. The Commission did not amend the
budget during the current fiscal year.

NOTE 2 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

For the year ended September 30, 2011, general fund expenditures had a negative
variance with the final budget in the following departmenis, which was covered by appropriations
from reserves: '

Public safety $ 172,835
General government:
Finance 1,100
City Attorney 235,529
Parks and recreation B
Public works ' 32,277
Building, planning and zoning 32,307

These unfavorable variances were caused by unbudgeted costs related to unforeseen
circumstances and occurrences during the year.

NOTE 3 - BUDGET OF GAAP RECONCILIATION

There are no differences to be reconciled between the budgetary comparison schedules and
the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds,

2B8()ss
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally
restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

State Forfeiture Fund - This fund is used to account for state forfeitures
restricted for law enforcement purposes.

Transportation Fund - This fund is used to account for 1estr1cted revenues and
expenditures associated with a county levied surtax and designated for public
transportation purposes..

Children’s’ Services Fund - This fund is used to account for certain grants and
programs that provide for summer programs as well as other adolescent
activities.

Parks Improvement Fund - This fund is used to account for resiricted
revenues and expenditures associated with a county levied surtax and designated
for park improvement purposes
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2011

Special Revenue Funds

Total
State Childrens Parks Nonmajor
Forfeiture Transportation Services - Improvement Governmental
Fund Fund PFund Fund Funds
ASSETS:
Cash, cash equivalenis
and investments $ 6,823 % 209,595 § - $ 131,900  $ 348,327
Receivables - 52,013 9,080 - 61,093
Due from other funds : 35,920 - - 225,559 261,479
Total assets $ 42,743 § 261,608 $ 9080 § 357,468 $ 670,899
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities: ,
Accounts payable $ 80 3 959 § 435 $ - $ 1,474
Accrued liabilities - 4635 - - 465
Due (o other funds 8,433 - 27,975 - 36,408
Total liabilities 8,513 1,424 28,410 - 38,347
Fund balances:
Restricted for:
Law enforcement 34,230 - - - 34,230
Public works - 260,184 - - 260,184
Culture and recrealion 357,468 357,468
Unassigned (deficit) - - (19,330) - (19,330)
Total fund balances 34,230 260,184 (19,330) 357,468 632,552
Total liabilitics
and fund balances $ 42,743 % 261,608 % 9,080 % 357,468 $ 670,899

280 )ud

39



COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LBG)VY



CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

Special Revenue Funds

Total
State Childrens Parks Nonmajor
Forfeiture Transportation Services Improvement Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES:
Taxes $ - $ 214,742 - $ - $ 214,742
Fines and forfeitures - - - - -
Granis - - 9,080 - 9,080
Interest income - - - - -
Miscellaneous - - 5,500 3,400 8,900
Total revenues - 214,742 14,580 3,400 232,722
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety 8,772 - - - 8,772
Public works - 68,599 - : - 68,599
Culture and recreation - - 33,910 - 33,910
Capital outlay - 7,288 - : - 7,288
Total expenditures 8,772 75,887 33,910 - 118,569
Excess (deficiency)
of revenues
over expenditures (8,772) 138,855 {19,330) 3,400 114,153
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES:
Transfers in - 55,248 - - 55,248
Net change in _
fund balance (8,772) 194,103 (19,330) 3,400 169,401
FUND BALANCES,
beginning of year 43,002 66,081 - 354,068 463,151
FUND BALANCES
(Deficit), end of year $ 34,230 h) 260,184 (19,330 % 357,468 $ 632,552
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Keefe, McCullough & Co., LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAIL. CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor, City Commission and City Manager
City of North Bay Village, Florida
North Bay Village, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North
Bay Village, Florida (the “City”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2011, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
Tune 26, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses and therefore, there
can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been
identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency 2009-1 described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs to be a material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiencies 2006-3, 2010-2, 2010-5, 2010-6, 2011-1 and 2011-2
described in the accompany schedule of findings and questioned costs to be significant deficiencies.
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City of North Bay Village, Florida

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on

compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not

express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. :

The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City's response and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Mayor, Members of the City Commission,

management, awarding agencies, and the Auditor General of the State of Florida and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

Keelfe/, Wc CL(((OL%A & Co., L P

KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
June 26, 2012
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Keefe, McCullough & Co., LLP

__ Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT
ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Mayor, City Commission and City Manager
City of North Bay Village, Florida
North Bay Village, Florida

Compliance

We have audited City of North Bay Village, Florida’s (the “City”) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the City’s major federal programs for the year ended
September 30, 2011. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s .
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of City management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
City’s compliance based on our andit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. OQur audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended September 30, 2011.

Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness the internal
control over compliance.
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City of North Bay Village, Florida

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of Compliance
requircment of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness. in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material- noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. ‘ :

This report is intended solely for the informiation and use of Mayor, City Commission,

management and others within the entity, federal awarding agencies, anq pass—thr_ough entities and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Keeﬁa, Me @ki[ov%h & Co., LtP

KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
June 26, 2012
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Keefe, McCullough & Co., LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO CITY MANAGEMENT

Honorable Mayor, City Commission and City Manager
City of North Bay Village, Florida
North Bay Village, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the City of North Bay Village, Florida (the "City") as

of and for the year ended September 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated June 26,
2012.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmernt Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits
of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. We have issued our Independent
Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Compliance and Other Matters,
Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to each Major Program
and on Internal Control over Compliance, and Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.
Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated June 26, 2012, should be considered in
conjunction with this management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor
General, which govern the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of
Florida. This letter includes the following information, which is not included in the aforementioned
auditor’s reports or schedule:

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine
whether or not corrective actions have been taken to address significant findings
and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report. The
status of findings and recommendations made in the previous audit report are
noted in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Part E.

Section 10.554(1)(1)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires our audit to
include a review of the provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes,
regarding the investment of public funds. In connection with our audit, we
determined that the City complied with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes.

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address
in the management letter any recommendations to improve financial
management. In connection with our audit, our recommendations to improve
financial management are included in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs Part E.

Section 10,554(1)()4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address
violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have
occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect on the financial
statements that is less than material but more than inconsequential. In connection
with our audit, we did not have any such findings.

4550 N. Federal Highway & Suite 410 % Fort Lavderdale, FL 33308 & 954.771.0894 ¥ 9549389353 (F} & www.kmcepa.com
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City of North Bay Village, Florida

Section 10.554(1)(i)5., Rules of the Auditor General, provides that the auditor
may, based on professional judgment, report the following matters that have an
inconsequential effect on financial statements, considering both quantitative and
qualitative factors: (1) violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements,
fraud, illegal acts, or abuse, and (2) control deficiencies in internal control that
are not significant deficiencies. In conmection with our audit, control
deficiencies that are not significant deficiencies are included in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Part E.

Section 10.554(1)(1)6., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or
official title and legal authority for the primary government and each component
unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this management letter, unless
disclosed in the notes to the Tinancial statements. The City of North Bay Village,
Florida was incorporated in 1945 as a municipality under the laws of Florida
Statute 23427.

Section 10.554(1)(1)7.a., Rules of the Auditor General, requires a statement be
included as to whether or not the local governmental entity has met one or more
of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and
identification of the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we
determined that the City did not meet any of the conditions described in Section
218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Section 10.554 (1) (i)7.b., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we
determine whether the annual financial report for the City for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2010, filed with the Florida Department of Financial
Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with
the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011.
In comection with our audit, we determined that these two reports were in
agreement.

Pursuant to Section 10.554(1)(D)7.c. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor
General, we applied financial condition assessment procedures. It is
management's responsibility to monitor the City's financial condition, and our
financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by
management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, this management letter is a public record and its
distribution is not limited. Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States require us to
indicate that this letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Commission,
management, and the Florida Auditor General, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Keezée/,mccudo”ﬁh & Co., LLP
KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

Fort Lavnderdale, Florida
June 26, 2012
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1.

The auditors’ report expresses a qualified opinion on the financial statements of City of
North Bay Village, Florida.

Material weaknesses relating to the audit of the basic financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of City of North Bay
Village, Florida were disclosed during the audit.

No material weaknesses relating to the audit of the major Federal programs are reported in
the Independent Auditors” Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a
Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

The auditors' report on compliance for the major Federal programs for City of North Bay
Village, Florida expresses an unqualified opinion.

There are no findings relative to the major Federal programs for City of North Bay
Village, Florida reported in Part C of this schedule.

The programs tested as major programs are as follows:
Federal Program Federal CFDA Number
Environmental Protection Agency -
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water
State Revolving Funds 66.458

The threshold for distinguishing ije A and Type B projects was $ 300,000 for major
Federal programs.

City of North Bay Village, Florida was determined not to be a low risk auditee pursuant to
OMB Circular A-133.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

NONE

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS

NONE

D. OTHER ISSUES

1.

No summary schedule of prior audit findings is required because there were no prior audit
findings related to Federal Programs.

No corrective action plan is required because there were no findings required to be
reported under the Federal Single Audit Act.
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011
E. INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
CURRENT YEAR COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

2011-1 Minute Preparation and Subsequent Approval (Significant deficiency):

We noted during our review of the governing bodies minutes that the prior months minutes
were not being approved timely after the meeting took place. The approval of minutes signifies
that all information contained within them representing the actions of the Commission is approved.
We recommend that minutes be approved at a minimum of two months subsequent to the meeting
taking place so attending individuals can clearly remember and validate the events of that meeting.

Management's Response:

The City experienced some delay in producing the recording of the Commission Meetings
for preparation of detailed Minutes. The City Clerk’s Office takes the responsibility of recording
and producing accurate and timely minutes very seriously. Since the close of last year we have
hired a part time employee to assist in preparing accurate and prompt minutes. Our current
schedule is that all minutes are produced within three weeks of the close of the meeting.

2011-2 Budget amendments (Significant deficiency):

" During the current year the City did not amend its budget to address various over-
expenditures at the departmental level that occurred. This resulted in various items to be expended
in excess of their originally budgeted amounts without formal authorization. Budgets are vital in
the control of a governmental entity as they reflect the governing body original expenditure plans
and the sources of money to support them. Upon unexpected expenditures being incurred, the
governing body should determine if alternative funding is necessary and available or if not, allow
the development of means to address the new financial forecast based on the most recent data. We
believe this was partially caused by a lack of financial reporting detail necessary for the
authoritative body to identify the over-expenditure. We believe the City should incorporate
financial reports that reflect, at a minimum, the level of control based on City criteria. The level
of control for the City is at the departmental level. : -

Management’s Response:

The City management, including the Finance Director, will monitor the monthly
expenditures by department and fund, and will take the required budget amendments to the City
Commission for approval prior to the expenditure of unappropriated funds.

LR(I)T
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

PRIOR YEAR INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

2000-3
2006-1

2006-3

2007-1
2008-1
2009-1
2010-1
2010-2

2010-3

2010-4

2010-5

2010-6

2010-7

General Fixed Assets inventory

Capital Asset Subsidy Ledger Software,
Reconciliation and Maintenance

General Ledger Maintenance

Audit Journal Entries

Grants Management and Administration
Bank Reconciliations

Accounts payable subsidiary ledger

Implement form monthly closing
procedures

Document Significant Operational and
Accounting Processes

Assess the Accounting Department
Staffing Needs

Review Customer Accounts Receivable
and the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
in the Enterprise Fund

Restrict Access of Multiple Main-Street
users to Data Files -

Consider Implementing an Enterprise Rigk
Management (ERM) Program
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

E. INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)
PRIOR YEAR INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)

2006-1 Capital Assets Subsidiary Detail Ledger Software, Reconciliation and Maintenance:

The City maintains a manually prepared schedule in Microsoft Office Excel for tracking its
capital assets using a spreadsheet program. The City should also look into a new software
program designed to maintain fixed schedules to assist in this process. Benefits included in such
programs include the ability to calculate gains and losses upon asset disposition, generation of
reports by location for inventory observation and automatic calculation of depreciation expense
depending on preprogrammed generally accepted methods of depreciation (double declining
balance, straight line, etc.) The existing subsidiary ledger maintained on the spreadsheet requires
constant maintenance and formula manipulation which lends itself to the possibility of errors being
made, miscalculations along with additional time and effort to maintain.

We also noted that the fixed asset schedule was not timely updated during the year and
needed to be adjusted in order to correspond to the City's books and supporting records including
the inventory that had been during the year. We recommend that the City maintain its subsidiary
ledger of capital asset detail on a periodic basis including reconciling it to the inventory
observation completed in order to properly track, record and maintain custody of fixed assets.

Management's Response:

The City is currently looking into obtaining integrated software which would include a
fixed asset module that would allow us to properly track fixed assets.

2006-3 General Ledger Maintenance (Significant Defictency):

The City’s financial audit required numerous material adjusting journal entries in order to
prepare financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (“GAAP”) and related standards., The financial statements are required to be a

roduct of an internal financial reporting system that offers reasonable assurance that management
1s able to produce financial statements in accordance with GAAP. We recommend that the City
reviews interim financial data to ensure that the time necessary to research the composition of
year-end general ledger balances is minimal.

Management's Response:

Management agrees that general ledger accounts should be reconciled on a monthly basis.
During the year ended September 30, 2011, the accounting personnel were working towards
properly reconciling all accounts. The City attempted to hire an outside consultant to assist but it
did not prove beneficial. The consultant was terminated because they never finished the task for
which they were engaged for, and this forced the accounting department to have to change the
original plan in order to be able to have cash reconcited in time for the audit. The City and the
Finance Director acknowledge that the main problem areas relate to cash, payroll liabilities, as
well as accruals related to capital projects, and will implement procedures to be able to properly
address these issues before the next audit takes place.

LB()D
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

E. INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)
PRIOR YEAR INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)

2009-1 Bank Reconciliations (Material Weakness):

During our audit, we noted that reconciliations of the City’s operating cash accounts had
been fperformed but not reconciled to the general ledger for a significant portion of the fiscal year.
As of the date of our field work a significant unreconciled difference existed. This condition can
result in errors, going undetected for long periods of time and could result in material differences
between the City’s true cash position and that which is reflected on the City’s general ledger as it
did at the time of our field work. We recommend that the City, along with other closing
procedures (2010-2), reconcile its cash accounts within two weeks of the end of a monthly period.
In addition to the preparation of bank reconciliations by a designated individual, there should be
another individual charged with the review and approval of the reconciliation once it is prepared to
verify the reconciliation process is complete.

Management's Response:

Now that cash has been reconciled through the collaboration of our accounting department
and our current auditors, we believe that we should be able to keep cash up to date and reconciled
on a consistent basis. This will be priority of the new accounting policies and procedures.

2010-2 Implement Formal Monthly Closing Procedures (Significant Deficiency):

As discussed in items 2006-3, we recommended numerous adjusting journal entries during
our audit. In addition, we experienced delays in obtaining certain information necessary to
complete the financial statements. Due to these conditions, we believe that the City would benefit
from developing a formal monthly closing process. We believe that the year-end closing could
proceed more quickly by developing a 1) closing schedule that indicates who will perform each
procedure, 2) when completion is due and 3) designate an individual responsible for monitoring
and overseeing the procedures and general ledger maintenance. The procedures should include but
are not limited to ensuring that:

® Bank reconciliations are performed and reviewed within ten days of a monthly
close,

° Subsidiary ledgers (accounts payable and receivables) are reconciled and agreed to
the trial balance,

° Proper identification of capital outlay and related in-progress projects,

) Ensure proper revenue recognition and cutoff, and

. Settlement of monthly due to/from balances

In addition, in order to ensure that all closing procedures are performed on a timely basis,
we also recommend that a comprehensive checklist be prepared to be used by both the accounting
and servicing departments. The checklist should cover all procedures that the City determines
need to be performed on a periodic basis including, but not limited to, month end procedures such
as bank reconciliations, and general ledger account analysis, as indicated above.

L B8()
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

E. INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)

PRIOR YEAR INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)

Management's Response:

" This is one of the basic functions of the finance departinent. One of the goals and objectives
for the current fiscal year is to develop a comprehensive accounting policies and procedures
manual that will incorporate this and other improvements.

2010-03 Document Significant Operational and Accounting Processes:

We recommend that the City institute a program to methodically identify and document its
significant operational and accounting processes. Processes include activities and procedures
involved in repeatable operational or accounting transactions or events, such as hiring new
employees, paying invoices, processing payroll, taking physical inventory of Fixed Assets,
preparing and approving journal entries, etc.

Accounting processes, in particular, are procedures to initiate, authorize, record, process,
and report transactions and involve activities such as the following:

1. Capturing, sorting, and merging data,

2. Making calculations,

3. Updating transactions and master files,

4. Generating transactions,

5. Summarizing and displaying or reporting data,

6. Correcting and reprocessing previously rejected transactions, and

7. Correcting erroneous transactions through adjusting journal eniries.

Documenting a process involves identifying and gaining an understanding of the events or
transactions that (rigger performance of the process, the automated or manual procedures used in
performing the process, the person or position responsible for performing the procedures, the
source documents used or generated, the procedures for approval and review and correction of any
errors detected, and the financial or operational entries or reports summarizing the result of the
process. Procedures that may be used to gain an understanding of the workflow or flow of
transactions include inquiry of City personnel; observation of them performing their duties;
inspection of documents, forms, and records used in or produced in the process; tracing
transactions through the system; and performing a walk-through of the procedures performed in
the process. It may include policy manuals, process models, flowcharts, job descriptions,
documents, and forms, and can be in paper form, electronic files, or other media.

Management's Response:

We are currently updating our internal control policies. We started the process during the
year ended September 30, 2010, but due to current administrative changes, along with issues
encountered during the year, we were unable to finish. However, we started the process again
subsequent to year end. We will take this suggestion into consideration and incorporate it to our
updated policies going forward.
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

E. INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)

PRIOR YEAR INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)

2010-04 Assess the Accounting Department Staffing Needs:

It was apparent that the recent reduction of accounting staff is putting a strain on the
current staff to complete their responsibilities in a timely manner. For example, we noted that
there was a significant increase in the time spent to accomplish their day to day responsibilities, as
well as on the time needed to close the financial reports of the City. The situation will likely onty
get worse as the City grows and transactions and reporting requirements increase. We recommend
that the City Manager, along with the Finance Director, assess the staffing needs of the accounting
department and plan for increasing capacity through hiring or reorganizing the current
responsibilities.

Management's Response:

We realize this issue and agree that the lack of personnel is causing a strain, especially in -
the accounting department. Many of the accounting department staff are cross-trained and
typically are reassigned to various other non-accounting tasks to fill positions temporarily, and the
detailed work that the accounting department is responsible for is then delayed. We have also
expérienced a decrease in the amount of people in the department. These issues interrupt work
flow, create delays, and increase the risk of error. The FY 2013 budget is being prepared with a
request for one additional staff position to assist in these improvements.

2010-05 Review Customer Accounts Receivable and the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts in
the Enterprise Fund (Significant Deficiency):

The accounts receivable aging report and related allowance for doubtful accounts are not
being analyzed periodically, resulting in the requirement of adjustments as a result of our audit.
We recommend that the Accounting Department review the accounts receivable aging report and
prepare an analysis of uncollectible accounts at least quarterly. This analysis should consider prior
charge-off experience and experience with the customer, as well as other information management
may have about the account, such as indications of financial difficulty. Accounting personnel
should adjust the allowance for doubtful accounts after reviewing the analysis of uncollectible
accounts and making appropriate collection efforts, in .order to collect as much as possible and to
ensure that the estimated loss from uncollectible accounts receivable is reflected on the balance
sheet.

Management's Response:

The staff has developed a procedure to review all past due accounts monthly and start
collection procedures before they get out of control. The past due has been reduced to less than
5% of billing. The major amount of the Utility Fund accounts receivable is penalties and most of
those have been reduced over the past two years,
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

E. INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)

PRIOR YEAR INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)

2010-06 Restrict Access of Multiple Main-Street users to Data Files (Significant Deficiency):'

The City uses Main-street accounting software, which allows more than one user to access
accounting activity. We believe that because multiple users have access to the City’s data files,
steps should be taken to protect the data from unauthorized use. The designated Administrator
should specify the areas to which each person will have access and whether that access is to be full
or selective. If only selective access is granted, the designated Administrator should also specify
whether the user can (a) create transactions only, (b) create and print transactions, or (c) create
both transactions and reports. Even if users were granted full access in a particular area, they
would not be able to change or delete transactions in that area unless they were given permission
to do so.

Management's Response:

The Finance Director has reevaluated the Main Street system access and reduced access to
the Finance Department staff only.

2010-07 Consider Implementing an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Program:

Today more than ever, a City will face risks from both expected and unexpected channels.
To weather the current financial crisis, the City has to be more proactive than ever when
identifying, assessing, prioritizing, and managing those risks. (i.e. Liquidity Problems, Security
Risks, Credit Risks, Fraud Risks, Compliance Risks, and Strategic Risks). Enterprise risk
management (ERM) is an efficient and functional approach to managing these risks. Using ERM,
the City can align their tolerance for risk with its current strategy by identifying events that could
have an adverse effect on the City’s operations and related results, and developing an action plan
to deal with those events. ERM can help the City:

i. Achieve organizational goals by identifying strategic risk opportunities.
2. Enable the City Manager and those charged with governance to make the best
decisions by providing them with the latest risk information.
3. Align risk identification and risk management with annual performance goals.
4, lfingourage employees to communicate any risks and chaltenges that they might be
acing.

Management’s Response:

The City has contacted our insurance carrier and requested their assistance in considering
putting on ERM program in place for the City of North Bay Village.

LBG)2
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

E. INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)
PRIOR YEAR INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued)

To design and implement an effective ERM within the City, we recommend that they do
the foHowing:

1. Define the City’s risk tolerance clearly and communicate it throughout the different
Departments. '

2. Formally document the risk management structure.

3. Clearly define the roles and responsibilities of individﬁals involved in the process.

4. Use technology as much as possible when creating reports and monitoring tools.

Management's Response:

We are working to achieve these goals.

2B0)14
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Keefe, McCullough & Co,, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON
THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF THE BUILDING BETTER COMMUNITIES
BOND PROJECTS OF THE CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA IN :
ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROGRAM-SPECIFIC AUDIT OPTION UNDER MIAMI-DADE
COUNTY, FLORIDA ORDINANCE 05-47, APPLICABLE RESOLUTIONS AND BUILDING
BETTER COMMUNITIES ADMINISTRATIVE RULES

To the Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Commission
City of North Bay Village, Florida

We have audited the accompanying schedule of expenditures of the Building Better Communities
Bond Projects of the City of North Bay Village, Florida for the period from October 1, 2010 through
September 30, 2011. This schedule is the responsibility of the management of the City of North Bay
Village, Florida. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Miami-Dade County, Florida
Ordinance 05-47, Applicable Resolutions and Building Better Communities Adminisirative Rules.
Those standards and Miami-Dade County, Florida Ordinance 05-47, Applicable Resolutions and
Building Better Communities Administrative Rules require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the schedule is free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the schedule.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall schedule presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of the Building Beiter Communities Bond Projects
referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, the expenditures of the Building Better
Communities Bond Projects for the period from October 1, 2010 through September 30, 2011, under
Miami-Dade County, Florida Ordinance 05-47, Applicable Resolutions and Building Better
Communities Administrative Rules, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

We audited the basic financial statements of the City of North Bay Village, .Florida and rendered
our opinion thercon as well as our report on internal control over financial reporting and on
compliance and other matters in our reports dated June 26, 2012. Those reporis, as well as our

management letter in accordance with the Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida were
considered by us and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying schedule.

/(eezfe, M Cu([w%h & Co., L /P

KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
June 26, 2012

4550 N, Federal Highway % Suite 410 % Fort Lauderdate, FL 33308 & 954.771.08%6 ¥ 954.938.9353 (F} & www.kmccpa.com
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF BUILDING BETTER COMMUNITIES BOND PROJECTS
For the Period from October 1, 2010 through September 30, 2011

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

GOB Project Name and Number Expenditures
Install Wastewater Force Main - Project
#17.9-71194
Construction - fiscal year 2011 $ 337,758
Total Expenditures $ 337,758

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
NOTE 1 - BUILDING BETTER COMMUNITIES BOND PROGRAM
The Building Better Communities Bond Projects were created on November 2, 2004 by
Miami-Dade County, Florida Ordinance 05-47 for the purpose of providing municipal

governments with funding to develop, construct, improve, rehabilitate and restore or acquire real
property, including infrastructure.

NOTE 2 - GENERAL

The schedule of expenditures of the Building Better Communities Bond Projects presents
the expenditures/activity of the Building Better Communities Bond Program for the City of North
Bay Village, Florida for the period from October 1, 2010 through September 30, 2011.

NOTE 3 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedule of expenditures is presented using the modified accrual basis
of accounting, which is described in the notes of the City's basic financial statements.

LB()Ig
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Period October 1, 2010 through September 30, 2011

PART I. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' REPORT
Schedule of Expenditures
Type of auditors’ report issued:
Building Better Communities Bond Projects
Internal control over program:
Material weakness (es) identified?
Reportable condition(s) identified not considered to be

Material weakness (es)?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for program-specific
program:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Ordinance 05-47?

Unqualified Opinion

yes X _no

—_— —_—

yes X mno

——

Unqualified Opinion

yes X no

PART II. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - BUILDING BETTER COMMUNITIES

BOND PROGRAM
NONE

LB()19



Keefe, McCullough & Co.,, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE BUILDING BETTER COMMUNITIES
' BOND PROJECTS AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH PROGRAM-SPECIFIC AUDIT OPTION UNDER MIAMI-D ADE
COUNTY, FLORIDA ORDINANCE 05-47, APPLICABLE RESOLUTIONS AND
- BUILDING BETTER COMMUNITIES ADMINISTRATIVE RULES

To the Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Commission
City of North Bay Village, Florida

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of North Bay Village, Florida (the "City") with the
types of compliance requirements described in Miami-Dade County, Florida Ordinance 05-47,
Applicable Resolutions and Building Better Communities Administrative Rules that have a direct and
material effect on ecach Building Better Communities Bond Project for the period from October 1,
2010 through September 30, 2011. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants applicable to this project is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Miami-Dade County,
Florida Ordinance 05-47, Applicable Resolutions and Building Better Communities Administrative
Rules ("Ordinance 05-47"). Those standards and Ordinance 05-47 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the Building Better
Community Bond Projects occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opmion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that are applicable to its Building Better Communities Bond Projects for the period from October 1,
2010 through September 30, 2011,

Internal Control over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to the
Building Better Communities Bond Projects. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the
City's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on its Building Better Community Bond Projects, in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on the internal control over
compliance in accordance with Miami-Dade County, Florida Ordinance 05-47, Applicable Resolutions
and Building Better Communities Administrative Rules, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.

6550 M. Federa! Highway % Suite 410 # Fort Lauderdale, F[ 33308 & 954.771.0896 & 954.938.9353 (F) & www,krpcc:pu.com
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City of North Bay Village, Florida

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control .
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. :

This report is intended solely for the information of the Mayor, Members of the City Commission,
management, and management of Miami-Dade County, Florida and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

/_(eeﬁez, MeCatlowgh & Co., AZ?’

KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
June 26, 2012
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CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE

MONTHLY REPORTS 2012
ADMINISTRATION

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN AUG SEPT oCT NOV DEC YTD
TOTAL TRANSACTIONS
{CKS/CREDIT CARDS) 469 435 335 437 501 459 2636
VISITORS 108 118 113 117 159 90 705
PASSPORT ISSUED 16 49 53 42 51 51 262
NOTARY SERVICES 14 11 18 6 2 3 54
TAX RECEIPTS (OCCUP
LICENSES) 17 16 11 5 10 10 69
LIEN SEARCH/REQUESTS
FOR INFORMATION: 35 41 39 51 61 40 267
POST OFFICE 593 668 687 669 624 550 3791

_ 0

ATS (AMERICAN TRAFFIC
SOLUTIONS PRIOR TO
7/1/10) HEARINGS IN NBV 59 73 0 0 0 0 132
LAF (NBV-AFTER 7/1/10)
HEARINGS N MDC . 0 0 29 21 31 58 139




NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT STATISTICS 2011

DATE Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12
TOTAL CALLS FOR SERVICE 2,457 2,155 2656 2416 2798 3144
HOW CALLS RECEIVED:
911 14 10 17 9 13 15
Radio 24 13 23 31 20 35
Walk-In 17 39 23 22 .29 24
Telephone 259 211 227 200 203 261
Officer Initiated 2,134 1,877 2357 2142 2,527 2,803
TYPES OF CRIMES
FELONIES
HOMICIDE 0 0 0 0 0 1
ATTEMPT BURGLARY 1 0 1 0 0 0
BURGLARY STRUCTURE 0 0 0 0 0 1
BURGLARY RESIDENCE 2 1 1 0 2 4
BURGLARY VEHICLE 4 6 6 5 4 7
" ROBBERY ARMED 0 0 1 0 0 1
ROBBERY STRONGARM 0 0 0 0 0 0
SEXUAL BATTERY 0 1 0 0 0 0
AGG BATTERY/ASSAULT 2 1 0 2 0 1
FRAUD GENERAL 0 1 0 1 2 3
CC FRAUD 0 1 1 1 0 i
ID THEFT 2 8 3 3 2 1
INTERNET FRAUD 0 o 0 0 0 0
GRAND THEFT 4 2 2 4 3 3
MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 0 1 2 3 2 1
TOTAL FELONIES 15 22 i7 19 15 23
MISDEMEANORS
SIMPLE BATTERY 2 4 1 2 1 1
DOMESTIC BATTERY 4 1 3 2 1 1
ASSAULT 0 0 3 0 0 0
VERBAL THREATS 0 2 1 0 0 1
THEFT GENERAL 1 3 1 1 3 3
STOLEN DECAL 0 2 1 1 0 0
STOLEN TAG 2 1 0 2 1 1
DUl 1 2 0 0 0 1
TOTAL MISDEMEANORS 10 15 10 8 6 8
CITATIONS
TRAFFIC 228 200 167 126 105 107
PARKING 69 100 74 127 107 56



ARRESTS 34 33 13
ARREST TYPES
FELONY 6 8 2
MISDEMEANOR 9 11 4
BENCH WARRANT 1 0 i
CRIMINAL CITATIONS 18 14 6
REPORT TYPES
MISC INCIDENT 27 37 33
OFFENSE INCIDENT 25 35 31
_ CRASH REPORT 6 6 11
HIT AND RUN 1 2 1
FIELD INTERVIEW 1 5 2
CODE WARNINGS 6 9 14
CODE VIOLATIONS 6 3 2
AVERAGE RESPONSE TIME
TOTAL TIME (MIN) 2,503 2544 3257
TOTAL AVERAGE (MIN) 224 2492
PRIORITY CALLS 3.88 3.17 0.76
ROUTINE CALLS 4 469 527
BUSY TIME 1,145 1347 1725
COURT/DEPO 250 173 73
UNCOMMITTED TIME (MIN 1,198 1024 1459
INVESTIGATIONS
CARRY OVER PRIOR 12 16 21
NEW INVESTIGATIONS 16 20 19
CASES CLEARED 8 7 6
CLEARANCE RATE 2857% 19.44%  15%
BACKGROUND INVEST. 0 0 0

20
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0.95
2.60
2501
264
699

19

[ BT I

10

45
35

N RO W

22
22

18%

0

2761
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NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT STATISTICS 2011
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CITY QF NORTH BAY VILLAGE

MONTHLY REPORTS 2012
BUILDING DEPT

JAN FEB *MAR APR MAY JUN JuL AUG SEPT ocT NOV DEC YTD
PERMITS/UPFRONT FEES $12,770.00 | $25,273.24 | $17.348.50 { $11,929.90 $9,465.08 14,442 43 91,230.15
VISITORS 189 176 177 158 199 182 1088
PERMIT APPLICATIONS/
REVISIONS 85 53 50 40 56 76 360
HOLD HARMLESS/
EXTENSIONS/ CERT OF
COMPLETION/OCCUPANCY/
CHANGE OF CONTRACTORS/
REINSPECTIONS/NOTARY/
*CONTRACTORS REGIS $659.00 $440.00 $1,015.00 $238.00 $685.00 $1,031.00 $4,068.00

0

BLDG INSPECTIONS/REVIEW 146 162 145 132 130 155 870
ELEC INSPECTIONS 34 33 37 23 25 29 181
MECH INSPECTIONS 12 9 13 5 13 14 &6
PLUMBG INSPECTIONS 26 41 32 27 43 23 192
STRUCTURAL REVIEWS 11 g 6 4 g 12 50




CODE ENFORCEMENT MONTHLY TOTALS FOR JUNE 2012

TRASH, RUBBISH & DEBRIS

11
ROAD DEBRIS REMOVED
ILLEGAL BUSINESS
ILLEGAL SIGNS 3
BUILDING MAINTENANCE 5
LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE/ YARD WASTE 10

PUBLIC NUISANCE/DANGER/ASSIST

HEALTH HAZARD

DUMPING

JUNK/ILLEGAL VEHICLES/BOATS

OTHER

GRAFFIT!

SIG HT_VISIBILITY/SIDEWALK OBSTRUCTION

PERMIT NOT DISPLAYED

FILMING WITHOUT PERMIT

DIRTY POOL/STAGNANT WATER

DIRTY ROOF OR ROOF NOT MAINTAINED

DOCK/SEAWALL IN DISREPAIR

ILLEGAL SOLICATION

PARKING LOT OR DRIVEWAY IN DISREPAIR

ILLEGAL TRAILER

DUMPSTER WITHOUT PERMITS

FENCE IN DISREPAIR

BACKED UP/RAW SEWAGE

ILLEGAL AUTO REPAIR

OUTSIDE STORAGE

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE IN RESIDENTIAL AREA

wio oo |wimik (N |Q@ |0 00 (kim b6 (W .C (=

ILLEGAL SIGNS REMOVED 16
TAX FRAUD 0
Phone Calls 86
Meetings 27
Initial Inspections 57
Verbal Warnings Given 12
Courtesy Civil Infraction Notices Issued 24
Citations Issued 0
Re-Inspections 75
Work Without Permits/Permit Violations 8
Stop Work Order/Red Tag Posted

Complaints Received 13
Service of Process/Personal Service/Posting 0
Case Closed 34

Attended Code Enforcement Conference




MINUTES

CITIZENS BUDGET AND OVERSIGHT BOARD MEETING

CITY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES
1700 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, #132
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL. 33141

WEDNESDAY, MAY 23, 2012
4:30 P.M.

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by the Vice Chair, Al Blake, at 4:50 P.M. Present at Roll Call
were the Vice Chair, Al Blake; Max Crown; Maria Haviland; and Rick Muller. As a quorum
was determined to be present, the meeting commenced.

Board member Scott Greenwald was absent. Chair Al Gentry was absent and excused.

Also present were City Manager Dennis Kelly, Interim Finance Director Bert Wrains, Public

Works Director Sam Zamacona, City Clerk Yvonne Hamilton, and Lourdes Reyes Abadin of
Estrada Hinojosa.

In the audience were North Bay Village resident Fane Lozman and Biscayne Park resident
“Tom Leach.

2. NEW BUSINESS

A.

FINANCIAL REPORT

City Manager Dennis Kelly introduced Interim Finance Director Bert Wrains to
the Board to address the financial report titled, “City of North Bay Village Budget
~In-Brief thru April 30, 2012” (entered into the record as Exhibit 1.)

Interim Finance Director Wrains described the report as a draft reformat of the
monthly report that the City had been receiving from the Finance Department,
which he had tried to make more useful. The numbers used in the report were still
in need of verification, therefore the report was still a draft. The General Fund was
summed up as $3,606,827 in revenues and $2,911,201 in expenses year-to-date.
He mentioned eliminating pro-rata figures in the future, as he felt they were
distorting rather than useful because the City’s revenues and expenses could not be
divided into twelve monthly parts. He suggested instead utilizing a spending
comparison with the previous year.

Citizens Budget And Oversight Board Meeting
May 23, 2012
Draft Minutes

Page 1 of 9



Overall, he said, the City’s expenses tended to be very consistent since personnel
costs were about 70% of the budget, and ran predictably except for items such as
insurance and other one-time payments. He also pointed out the transfer payments
to special funds such as the After-School & Summer Program Fund, which was a
County program to which the City contributed $27,000 and the County contributed
$127,000. He explained that the report retained a statement of the cash position,
although cash flow was not done on a daily basis and revenues came in at various
times. As of April 30, 2012 the City’s cash position in its bank accounts was about
$6 million. Utility funds which had previously been scattered in the report were
now gathered together on the second page, and smaller funds followed. The last
page was the fiscal year month by month comparison of revenues and expenditures
for the previously listed departments and funds.

Interim Finance Director Wrains described the City’s finances as being in
rélatively good shape and coming in on budget, focusing mainly on the general
fund which was most vulnerable to variations. The final edit of the April 2012
report and the May 2012 report would be ready on June 12 for the City

Commission meeting, and the June 2012 report would be ready for the next Board
meeting.

Vice Chair Blake welcomed the new Interim Finance Director and mentioned
some issues with which the City had been dealing such as: obtaining new financial
software; consideration of outsourcing the Finance Department; past audit reports
that repeatedly cited the same issues; the Commission’s lack of comfort with the
financial reporting that had been available; and most recently the engagement of a
second auditor by the City Commission. The Vice Chair hoped the Interlrn Finance
Director would be able to assist the City with these issues.

The Interim Finance Director described his background n municipal budgeting as
spanning 40 years in South Florida, and assisting 7 different cities since 2004 after
his retirement. He said he has dealt with prior year audits, next year’s budget,
computer system bids, banking bids, and daﬂy operational management. Based on
his broad experience, he offered the opinion that the City was not in bad shape,
although information. may not be being communicated appropriately to the right .
people and some records needed to be brought up to date. He promised that

information he furnished to the City would be, above all, correct; even if that
meant a delay providing it.

Interim Finance Director Wrains informed the Board that during the City
Commission meeting of May 8, 2012 at which he and the City Manager had
addressed the issue of financial software, the City Commission had asked to be
informed regarding the pros and cons, and cost factors, of outsourcing the Finance
Department before commifting to the capital expenditure of new financial

Citizens Budget And Oversight Board Meeting
May 23,2012
Draft Minutes
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software, The City Manager had tasked him, as someone who had been on both
sides of the issue with experience both as a city employee as well as an outside
setvice provider, to develop that analysis for the City Commission. He described
the reasons that a city would outsource as being both good and bad. Simply put,
valid reasons for outsourcing would include functions where insufficient work was
provided to fully occupy an employee and outside firms had staff with surplus time
that could be sold at a reasonable price; and areas where service benefits could
come from regionalization, such as police and fire departments, even if the price
was somewhat high, He had just surveyed cities in Miami-Dade County, and
examples of outsourced city functions included finance, personnel, purchasing,

1.T., and landscaping.

Board member Muller asked specifically, regarding the Finance Department, if the
capital investment were made to highly automate the department, what would then
be needed to run the department in a city of this size.

The Interim Finance Director withheld his opinion, saying that he had only been
here for four weeks and had not yet reviewed all the software under consideration.
He remarked that one software system which he had experienced in the Town of
Southwest Ranches was an old system, and that municipal sofiware in general was
not cutting edge technology because of the tendency of cities to hold onto their
existing software systems for a long time. Vice Chair Blake commented that he
had seen software demonstrations that could readily produce reports such as the
City now struggled to develop and produce. Interim Finance Director Wrains
observed that a particular software system that had been favored by the City could
produce seven “canned reports”, if those particular reports were what was sought.
The Vice Chair hoped it would be possible to better utilize computers in the City,
analogous fo his experience of utilizing them in the private sector, and more
efficiently address tasks. He used the example of the police payroll, which he had
learned took 20 hours a week to prepare for a staff of 30 people. The Interim
Finance Director commented that with a paper system and each officer reporting
differently, payroll preparation would be time consuming, and the City seemed to
use more pay codes than he had seen elsewhere.

With regard to his expertise in software utilization, the Interim Finance Director
remarked that he was, by his initial college training, a systems analyst who then
went on to work in finance, and he felt comfortable that he was able to deal with
the issues.

Board member Max Crown asked whether Interim Finance Director Wrains had
prior experience with outsourcing police departments; and the reply was yes, at the
City of Oakland Park, and that the experience had been good for that city. All the
City’s employees had been kept on staff by the Broward County Sheriff, given
raises and new uniforms, and the City’s cost reduced by $1 million a year,

Citizens Budget And Oversight Board Meeting
May 23, 2012
Draft Minutes

Page 3 0of 9



However, the Sheriff at that time had been trying to build volume in his operation,

and by diligent effort the City of Oakland Park had been able to negotiate very
favorable terms.

Board member Crown asked whether Miami-Dade County must necessarily be the
outsoutce provider if the City were to do that, and whether police cars would bear
the City name or the County name. The City Manager observed that other cities
contracting with the County had their city names as well as the County name on
the County police cars assigned to the city. Vice Chair Blake inquired about where
the department would be located if it were outsourced. The City Manager and
Interim Finance Director suggested that terms desired by the City could be
negotiated into a particular contract. Resident Fane Lozman contributed
information he had gathered in about 2004 from Miami-Dade County regarding
contracted police services, that a given number of police officers would be
permanently assigned to the City, wear a North Bay Village patch on their
uniforms, and be based in the North Bay Village Police Department; that the
County also claimed that it would save money; and that existing North Bay Village
police officers that met their standards would be integrated into their force.

The Vice Chair commented that the single biggest concern of residents was
security and the Police Department, and outsourcing of police services would not
be a possibility if the department did not remain in the City. He recalled previous
discussion that had proposed County police officets be assigned to the City, but
driving across the Causeway from Miami. He further addressed the question of the
City’s identity if all City services were ultimately outsourced, and to date both
police and sanitation have been considered by residents to be “our city, our
services.” He observed that there had been changes in the City with regard to
rising costs, shrinkage in the tax base as a result of housing problems, and also a
shift in demographics and a new group of residents. The Interim Finance Director
remarked that the essential question was one of the level of service to be desired,
and who could best provide it. While he could supply facts and figures, the City
Commission had to make the political decisions. The Vice Chair agreed, and also
noted that the right facts and figures were needed to assist the City Commission in
its decision making,

Board member Max Crown inquired into the City’s reserve fund for emergencies,
and Interim Finance Director directed him to page 1 of the monthly financial
report and the entry for General Fund Appropriations & Carryover of $2,454,223
which was the unaudited figure from the previous budget report, subject to change
after the completed audit, and still unbudgeted for any expenses. Board member
Crown clarified that he was specifically referring to a stand-alone emergency fund,
and saw no protections on the entry for Appropriations & Carryover to designate
any of it for use only in emergencies such as a hurricane. The Interim Finance
Director replied that such a fund could be both established and overridden by the
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City Commission. Board member Rick Muller pointed out the City ordinance
which stipulated the maintenance of a 20% reserve fund and its allowed uses as
well as the allowed uses for any excess reserve. The Interim Finance Director
added that spending any of that fund would only be as a result of appropriation by
the elected body, who could also amend the ordinance that established the fund.
He further explained that governmental accounting rules required that reserve fund
balances at the end of the year be placed in up to five different categories by virtue
of the level of reserve status; and again, the elected body has the authority to
change the reserve status. If funds are not designated into one of those five
categories, then they are reported as unreserved.

Vice Chair Blake commented on the greater detail in reporting the cash position,
and the Interim Finance Director explained that it identified different bank
accounts, although one amount for SBA-231321A of $59,706.60 was actually an
amalgamation of 8 different accounts.

The Vice Chair asked for an update on the status of the audit, and was informed
that the Interim Finance Director expected to finish the bank reconciliations
through September 2011 and the updating of the fixed assets inventory by next
week. He added that the second auditors did not appear to be going over ground
already covered by the audit, but were instead concentrating on appropriations and
capital expenditures of the previous year, and purchasing procedures and policies.

There was discussion regarding the length of time it had taken to complete the
audit, and the problematic issue of having an unreconciled cash position. The City
Manager commented that it was his practice to hire auditors in July or August so
that they could do preliminary work before October, and turn in the completed
audit by the following January; whereas the present auditors had been hired, he
thought, in November or December. He noted that the City Code required the
audit to be done in April, and the State required it by June 30.

STATUS OF THE SEAWALL REPAIR/ DR. PAUL VOGEL PARK
(on the Agenda as Item 2C)

Public Works Director Sam Zamacona informed the Board that permits for the
seawall repair had been obtained from the Army Corps of Engineers on April 18,
from Miami-Dade County PERA (formerly known as DERM) on May 21, and
from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection on May 21. Building
permits from the City of North Bay Village were still pending.

The City was now awaiting letters from the grant agencies awarding the grants for
which the City had applied for the construction phase of the seawall repair, at a
total cost of about $70,000 including the design and permitting. It was hoped that
the grants would match each other and therefore not impact the City budget. The

Citizens Budget And Oversight Board Meeting
May 23, 2012
Draft Minutes

Page 50of 9



plans also called for fencing changes, sod replacement, and instailation of a path of
brick pavers after the completion of the seawall. Board member Max Crown was

assured by the Public Works Director that the brick pavers were not laid in
concrete and therefore would be easily removed in the future when water could be

expected to disturb the underlying soil. Board member Crown also sought

assurance that his recommendation to elevate the seawall cap by 18 inches to

protect the grass from water splashover was being given consideration during the

bidding and contracting phase.

Resident Fane Lozman informed the Board that when he visited Dock & Marine
with former Vice Mayor George Kane, they had offered to donate a lift and a dock
for the police boat as an incentive to be awarded the bid, and Mr. Lozman
suggested that should be considered during the bid process if the City desired to
deploy a police boat.

Vice Chair Blake asked the Public Works Director whether the City had saved
money as intended by keeping positions open in the sanitation department when
employees had retired, and using day labor instead where necessary. The Public
“Works Director replied that those figures were being prepared, and he hoped they
would be available for the next Board meeting. Vice Chair Blake recalled that one
of the options previously considered for the sanitation department was outsourcing
the entire department with Waste Management in order to save money, although
no contract had been put together. Public Works Director Zamacona recalled that
the savings promised by outspurcing the department were approximately one haif
million dollars; and Lourdes Reyes Abadin of Estrada Hinojosa informed the
Board that after former City Manager Pushkin left, they had been unable to
reconstruct the numbers to support that amount in savings. Vice Chair Blake
suggested revisiting the issue, to either substantiate the savings or dismiss it as a
possibility. Board member Max Crown recalled that one of the biggest objections
to the proposal had been that residents would lose their side yard pick-up service,
and would instead be required to bring garbage and trash out to the street.

PRESENTATION ON THE MILLAGE ROLLBACK RATE (CITY
MANAGER)

(on the Agenda as Item 2B)

City Manager Dennis Kelly gave the Board an explanation of the origins,
purposes, and calculation methods of the millage roliback rate. He mentioned that
a recent change to the calculation of the roliback millage rate was that adjusted
personal income, with that factor was provided by the State, was now part of the
formula. He distributed to the Board a form entitled “Maximum Millage
Calculation” (entered into the record as Exhibit 2) and instructions entitled
“Method of fixing millage” (entered into the record as Exhibit 3.)
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Before 1981, he explained, millage was calculated by utilizing a fixed millage rate
applied to assessed property values which changed yeatly and ina steadily upward
valuation. This had the effect of putting the onus of increased tax collection on the
property appraisers rather than on the officials who had oversight of millage rates
and could point to unchanging tax rates. Property appraisers in different counties
across the state were inconsistent with the formulas they used in appraisals, and
might assess only 40% of the actual value in some locales, but the trend overall
was that appraisals always increased.

In 1981, the TRIM (Truth In Mlllage) Bill was implemented. With it came the
requirement to assess properties at full fair market value. To get to fair market
value, appraisers were often forced to substantially increase their assessments,
perhaps doubling them, and the offset to this was an increase in the homestead
property tax exemption from $5,000 to $25,000.

City Manager Kelly described the effects of this on the city of St. Cloud, Fl, a
relatively poor city that he managed at the time. The increase in the property tax
exemptlon removed half of the city’s housing stock from the tax rolls. By contrast,
in Brevard County, where the sponsor of TRIM Bill lived, property values were
substantially above the level of the homestead exemption. Eventually values of
most homes climbed to the level that they were recaptured on the tax rolls.

With the TRIM Bill, and the method of calculating taxes called “roliback™ came
into play. The focus of it was the actual tax revenue generated in a given year,
rather than a particular fixed millage rate. The basic assumption, and what actually
occurred until about three years ago, was that property values would increase year
fo year Therefore, an increase in tax revenues as a result of applying the previous
year’s millage rate to this year’s tax base of increased assessed values would need
to be countered by decreasing or “rolling back” the millage rate until the tax
revenue was the same as the previous year. A decision not to lower the millage
rate would be classified as a tax increase and would be required to be publicized
as such, with the percentage of the tax revenue increase provided to the cmzenry,
and the onus for the increase placed on the governing bodies.

However, with property values decreasing in the wake of the real estate crisis by
approximately 50% in the last three years, after generations of growth,
theoretically millage rates could increase or “roll forward” to keep revenues equal
to the previous year, without being called a tax increase. The State of Florida has
added a statewide per capita change in personal income factor, that is, the increase
“or decrease of per capita personal income, as an additional and relatively minor
factor in setting millage rates.

The Vice Chair spoke to visiting guest Tom Leach, a resident of Biscayne Park
who was here to observe the operation of a citizens budget committee, which he
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described as a rarity but highly desirable in a small town. Mr. Leach remarked to
the Board that he believed that they should understand, with regard to their general
fund’s reserve fund balance, that it was in fact at present “unreserved”, a fund
balance that could be used for any purpose because the reserve had never been set
up. City Manager Kelly said the term “undesignated” might be more appropriate.
Interim Finance Director Wrains explained that there exists a government
standards board for government accounting which made the rules to  which
government accounting needed to adhere, and which has recently issued a
statement regarding what to call your fund balances. The new statement provided
for more definition and reserve funds could consist of six or seven different
categories, according to which authority designated them to be reserved, such as
the City Commission or the City Manager. The new financial statement he would
be presenting would show funds categorized as they were required o be according
to the rules that every government had to follow.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING — APRIL 25, 2012
REGULAR MEETING - MARCH 21, 2012

1.) Board Action

Board member Rick Muller made a Motion to approve the minutes of
the regular meetings of March 21, 2012, and April 25, 2012. The
Motion was seconded by Board member Maria Haviland. The votes
were as follows: Al Blake-Yes; Max Crown-Yes; Maria Haviland-Yes;
and Rick Muller-Yes. The Motion passed 4-0.

4. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 6:40 P.M.

Prepared and submitted by: Katharine Price

Clerical Assistant

Adopted by the Citizens Budget and Oversight Board on

vﬂ' / day of /M 20 /o2 .
A < A

Al Gentry, Chair /
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(Note: The Minutes are not a verbatim record of the meeting. A copy of the audio recording is available at the City
Clerk’s Office until the time for disposition in accordance with the Records Disposition and other Public Records Law:.)
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MINUTES

COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT BOARD MEETING

CITY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE
1700 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, #132
CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL. 33141

THURSDAY, JUNE 7, 2012 ~ 6:30 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER

The Meeting was called to order by the Chair, Penelope Friedland, at 6:40 P.M.
and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited. Present at Roll Cail were the Chair,
Penelope Friedland; the Vice Chair, Ann Bakst; Doris Acosta; Garry Beltran;
Candis Mason; and Brian Melton. As a quorum was determined to be present, the
meeting commenced.

Also present were Chief Building Official Richard Annese and Public Works
Director Sam Zamacona.

NEW BUSINESS

A. CITY REGULATIONS - CHAIN LINK FENCE (CHIEF BUILDING
OFFICIAL)

Chief Building Official Richard Annese explained to the Board that City Code
pertaining to chain link fences on private property prohibited them from being
on the front setback, but allowed them elsewhere on the property. The Board
pointed out how this allowed properties on corner lots to have chain link fences
that were visible from the street, and discussed some examples. The Chair
inquired about the City’s plans to screen one of these fences from view by
installing plantings; Public Works Director Zamacona informed the Board that
this was coming before the City Commission at the next meeting,

The Chief Building Official mentioned that the City’s Code was being
reviewed and the opportunity existed for changing aspects of the regulations
regarding chain link fences. The Chair requested him to make note of this as a
possible revision. With regard to the chain link fence on the Causeway flat
bridge, he informed the Board that the City Code regarding chain link fences
did not apply, as it was a matter for the FDOT and Public Works. The Chief
Building Official left the meeting at 6:50 P.M.
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Public Works Director Zamacona explained to the Board that the FDOT had
commenced a PD&E (planning, design, and engineering) study in preparation
for the next round of Causeway improvements scheduled for 2013, Rather than
assume the liability or cost of removing or replacing the chain link fence, the
City Commission had decided to wait for the FDOT improvements in 2015,
which would address many aspects of the Causeway, including the fence.

. The Chair was concerned that the fence would not be a priority for the FDOT,
and questioned whether the City had consulted their Attorney on the question
of liability resulting from removing the fence without replacing it, and whether
a cost estimate for removal without replacement had been obtained. The Board
discussed the fact that although the fence had been installed for the safety of
pedestrians, the walkway on the opposite side of the flat bridge had no fence,
and liability for that was never mentioned. The Board felt that by not taking
direct action to address the fence, the City was not moving forward on the goal

-of enhancing the community. The Chair asked the Public Works Director to
obtain a cost estimate for removal of the chain link fence without replacing it,
and to bring up to the City Manager their request for an opinion from the City
Attorney regarding liability; and the Board members were polled and were in
agreement.

Board member Garry Beltran inquired about what was being done to address a
newly formed pothole in that same area of the Causeway. Public Works
Director Zamacona explained that the problem was known, and bedding
material would be changed to more stable lime rock in that section, which was
where the flat bridge joined to the rest of the Causeway.

. COMMUNITY GARDENING (VICE MAYOR LIM)

Vice Mayor Lim was unable to attend due to a scheduling conflict and the Item
was deferred.

. DR. PAUL VOGEL PARK CONTRIBUTION CAMPAIGN (PUBLIC
WORKS DIRECTOR)

Public Works Director Zamacona submitted to the Board printed information
on a fund-raising stratagem administered by various companies that, in return
for contributions, placed engraved bricks and other markers in public places
(entered into the record as Exhibit 1). He proposed consideration of its use to
offset some of the costs of equipping and constructing Dr. Paul Vogel Park,
and sought the Board’s ideas on its implementation.
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The Chair felt that it was premature to consider, without design plans for the
park. The Public Works Director suggested that the existing path and future
pavers at the seawall were possible sites for markers, and the Board might give
its guidance on the aesthetics of design and placement. He also suggested that
some might donate the cost of a park element, such as a bench or a shelter, and
have a marker at the donated park element. If the program were successful, he

thought the same program might be used to beautify the tot lot on Galleon
Street.

The Chair was generally in favor of the idea if it could successfully raise
money, but the Chair and the other Board members were skeptical of the
chances that a significant amount of money could be raised in this manner,
citing the small number of residents and businesses to tap for potential
contributions. Board member Acosta suggested that the market for this
program should be evaluated before relying upon it for supplying any of the
park’s needs.

Board member Garry Beltran pointed out that the City had not been successful
in selling any of the ad space on the bus shelters. The Chair recalled that the
poor state of the bus shelters had been an item on the Causeway project walk-
thru punch list, and the Public Works Director informed her that the company
that owned them had visited and made repairs. Board member Acosta asked
why the Board had not been apprised of that fact earlier, given that their
interest was known. :

. COLOR OF PLANTINGS ON THE CAUSEWAY

The Board reached a consensus on alternating dark pink and white oleanders in
the planters on the Causeway flat bridge, for the effect of greater contrast,
beginning with dark pink and anticipating that an odd number of planters
would result in dark pink at each end. Board member Doris Acosta emphasized
that the oleanders chosen should be “standard” rather than “bushy”, and that
the larger rather than the smaller of the two planted samples should be used.
The Public Works Director estimated that this could be done in two weeks.

. LITTER ON THE CAUSEWAY AND AT THE COMMERCIAL
PROPERTIES

Board member Candis Mason discussed the litter she observed while walking
the Causeway with her dog, and wondered why the commercial properties did
not police their fronts and parking lots for litter, suggesting that they should be
given tickets. Dumpsters that were left open and thus allowed unpleasant odors
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into the area was another trash-related problem discussed by the Board.
Commercial properties that were cited by the Board members as offenders
included Food Giant, Trio, The Crabhouse, Benihana, and Happy’s.

The Chair suggested that the Code Enforcement Officer might visit these
properties to warn them that anti-litter and trash regulations would be enforced
in the future before issuing citations, and asked that the Code Enforcement
Officer supply the Board with a detailed report on the actions he had taken by
the next Board meeting. Public Works Director Zamacona promised to relay
the message.

Board member Mason asked whose responsibility it was to clean litter from the
medians. The Public Works Director responded that it was the City’s, which
had a Monday, Wednesday, and Friday schedule for picking up street trash and
litter, except for large items like palm fronds which were picked up daily.

The Board asked to be updated at their next meeting regarding the items
discussed so far: that is, Code Enforcement actions to address litter; and the
cost and liability of removing the chain link fence on the Causeway. The Board
also felt that the Code Enforcement Officer should personally atiend their next
meeting so that the Board could communicate their concerns.

F. SCHEDULE FOR JULY AND AUGUST MEETING

The Board chose, in order of preference, either Wednesday July 11,2012 at

5 P.M., or Monday July 9, 2012 at 5 P.M. as the date of the July meeting,
depending on scheduling availability. They deferred setting a date for August
until the next meeting,

GENERAL DISCUSSION

Board member Doris Acosta brought up two particular bulb-outs on Treasure
- Island, one which had been privately replanted by a resident, and another nearby
which was overgrown with weeds. After emailing the City and not seeing action
taken, she emailed Commissioner Blumberg and then saw results, in that the
overgtown bulb-out was given maintainance. She questioned whether this
intervention by Commissioner Blumberg would be a recurring necessity. Public
Works Director Zamacona informed the Board that the plantings in the other bulb-
out were to be replanted by Groundskeepers this week to conform with the City
landscaping. The resident had not removed the original landscaping; rather, had
dealt with an empty bulb-out not yet finished by Groundskeepers by planting on
their own inifiative. Board member Acosta criticized the performance of
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Groundskeepers, in not planting the bulb-out as originally required; in incorrectly
mulching; and in not installing weed bartiers in the bulb-outs, as she had observed
when they worked on the project, This, she said, illustrated her point that there was
no one to pay attention to the details of following through on the landscape
improvements made by the City. She believed that this could account for the fact
that home prices in the City had not increased following the City’s investment in
beautification. Other Board members noted general deficiencies such ag
overgrowth of weeds and bushes in need of trimming.

The Vice Chair, Ann Bakst, made the observation that the Causeway
improvements made it the most attractive that it had been in the 39 years that she
had been a resident in the City.

The Chair inquired about the status of the new maintenance contract, and the
Public Works Director informed the Board that the RFP was being reviewed by the
legal department before going out for bidding. Board member Acosta stressed that
developing a landscape maintenance schedule with detailed specifications was
crucial. The Public Works Director explained that while the existing maintenance
contract was a 21 page document, by contrast the contract being reviewed by the
legal department was a 107 page document due to the increase in specifications.
These specifications included, for example, weed removal on a weekly basis as
well as requiring one of the contractor’s project managers to meet with either
himself or a City management representative to assure that all the contract
specifications were being met.

Board member Acosta asked for the amount presently budgeted for landscape
maintenance, The Public Works Director informed her that it was approximately
$85,000. The maintenance cost was expected to increase due to the added
landscaping, but that amount would be unknown until after bids had been received.
The Chair felt that the budget impact would be justified by the added visual
appeal; in her experience as a realtor, visual appeal had the most immediate impact
on the desirability of real estate, increasing prices and the tax base.

The Board discussed how litter and lack of maintenance both detracted from the
visual appeal of the City. The Public Works Director commented on the never-
ending litter deposited by the public in the thoroughfares and intersections; and
the inadequacy of the City’s two maintenance staff members to address the tasks
of sweeping the streets, picking up the trash, and maintaining the parks. Board
members Mason and Beltran observed that fishermen illegally fishing from City
vantage points contributed to a great deal of the litter and debris left behind, and
wondered why the police did not monitor this activity and issue citations.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
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A. REGULAR MEETING MARCH 1, 2012

The March 1, 2012 minutes were previously approved at the April 9, 2012
meeting.

B. REGULAR MEETING APRIL 9, 2012

1) Board Action

The Chair, Penelope Friedland, made a Motion to approve the minutes
of April 9,2012. The Motion was approved with all in favor.

S. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 8:35 P.M.

Prepared and submitted by: Katharine Price
Clerical Assistant

Adopted by the Community Enhancement Board on
this day of

Penelope Friedland, Chair

(Note: The Minutes are not a verbatim record of the meeting. A copy of the audio recording is available at the City
Clerk’s Office until the time for disposition in accordance with the Records Disposition and other Public Records Law.)
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MINUTES

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING

CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS
1700 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, #132
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL. 33141

TUESDAY, MAY 29, 2012 - 7:30 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL

The meeting was called to order by the Chair, Reinaldo Trujillo, at 7:37 P.M. and
the Pledge of Allegiance was recited. Present at Roll Call were the Chair, Reinaldo

Trujillo; the Vice Chair, Jorge Gonzalez; Board Member James Carter; and Board
Member Bud Farrey.

Board Member Barry Beschel was absent and excused by the Chair,

Attending the meeting were Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps, Vice Mayor Eddie Lim,
and Commissioner Richard Chervony.

City staff present were City Manager Demnis Kelly, City Attorney Kathy
Mehaffey, City Attorney Susan Trevarthen, Interim City Planner James LaRue,
and Building Department Clerk Ana DeLeon.

(PUBLIC HEARINGS) ALL INDIVIDUALS DESIRING TO PROVIDE
- TESTIMONY SHALL BE SWORN IN.

City Attorney Kathy Mehaffey read the provisions for conduct of quasi-judicial
public hearings, and asked for disclosure of ex-parte communications on the part
of members of the Board. No Board members had anything to disclose.

The Clerk read the title of the request in Item 2A and swore in all those planning to
speak regarding the Item.

A. A REQUEST BY MIGUEL FORNELLA FOR A SPECIAL USE
EXCEPTION UNDER SECTION 152.098 OF THE CITY OF NORTH
BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE OPERATION OF
A JET SKI RENTAL BUSINESS AT THE COMMERCIAL MARINA
AT 7904 WEST DRIVE, HARBOR ISLAND, NORTH BAY VILLAGE,
FLORIDA.
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Interim City Planner James LaRue reported on the application for a special use
exception for a proposed jet ski tour/rental business, which was to be located

at the southernmost dock of the commercial marina at the Bayshore Yacht and

Tennis Club. He explained that both the yacht club and the marina are listed as
special use exceptions within the commercial general zoning district; jet ski
rental is an additional use of the marina, and also exists as a special use
category within the Land Development Code. He further clarified two points
that had been previously questioned: one, that the marina was in fact a
commercial marina; and two, that refueling could not be done on-site by hand
but must be done off-site where proper gas station facilities for fueling existed.
On the last point, he said, the applicant would state for the record his
agreement.

No traffic impact was expected and therefore no traffic analysis had been
performed.

On the issue of parking, based on six jet skis located in two slips or berths and
a group tour type of approach to the rental business as indicated by the
applicant, Interim City Planner James I.aRue suggested a total of three parking
spaces. One parking space per slip was already a requirement for the marina,
and a review of regulations conceming existing jet ski rental businesses
showed precedents requiring one parking space for every two jet skis. Given
the probability of clients sharing vehicles to arrive for the group tour service
that the applicant intended to operate, Interim City Planner Larue felt that three
parking spaces would prove adequate for six jet skis; and the applicant, he said,
had agreed to provide one parking space additional to the two spaces already
supplied by the marina for the two slips. More information as to the locations
of the parking spaces would be supplied by the applicant.

The Interim City Planner further recommended that it be ascertained there
were no restrictions on access to the marina, and that if any permissions were
required from the condominium association involved, then those permissions
needed to be furnished in writing. Other recommended conditions were that the
hours of operation were to be confined between 10 A.M. and 6 P.M.; that the
jet skis be safely secured when not in operation; that operation of the jet skis
comply with rules governing the use of boats in the Biscayne Bay Aquatic
Preserve, including noise, no-wake, and other issues.

The applicant, Miguel Fornella, took the podium and described his business
operation and the parking provisions, including one parking space located
inside the building used for his business equipment, and two parking spaces
located outside. He also explained his plan to lead jet ski tours around the bay,
and not in the vicinity of the area’s buildings.
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To facilitate communication with the applicant, the Chair conducted his

questioning of the applicant in Spanish and also translated the discussion into
English. ‘

The Chair questioned whether parking for jet ski customers could become an
issue on Harbor Island, when each jet ski could hold up to two people, and one
of the three parking spaces being supplied for the use of up to six jet skis was
to be used for equipment storage. The Chair noted that parking was already an
issue on Harbor Island. The applicant, Mr. Miguel Fornella, desctibed how
people came in groups, rarely alone; that clients who were hotel guests might
be transported by him to the marina; and that only five of his jet skis were
available to be rented by customers. The Chair asked whether the applicant had
parking spaces that were marked and specifically reserved for him; and upon
learning that the applicant had no marked and exclusive spaces, considered this
to be a major drawback both for the applicant’s business viability and the
area’s parking problems. Mr.: Fornella said that he needed to get more
information from the marina regarding parking.

The Chair asked whether the applicant had been in touch with the
condominium association, and Mr. Fornella responded that he had been, and
the property manager had been made aware of the business.

The Vice Chair, Jorge Gonzalez, sought clarification from the applicant
regarding the location of parking and access to the marina pier. The Vice
Chair noted that access to the pier was through the building and a considerable
distance from the parking location pointed out by the applicant, which was
street-side. The Vice Chair confirmed with the applicant that he had
permission from the condominium association for access.

The Vice Chair questioned how the growth of the business would be managed,
and where people might be expected to wait for available jet skis as the
popularity of the business increased. Mr. Fornella replied that he expected his
customers to be served primarily by appointment.

The Interim City Planner LaRue sought clarification regarding whether the
parking was street-side, or by the tennis courts as he had supposed and which
he felt was the best location. Upon learning that the applicant had indicated
street-side parking, the Chair pointed out that this parking was shared with
other commercial visitors to the building and therefore it was critical that the
applicant have assigned parking. The Interim City Planner suggested to the
Chair that a solution would be to have the recommendation include three
allocated spaces, marked, and as close to the pier as possible; and City
Attorney Mehaffey affirmed that such a recommendation was permissible.

Board Member Bud Farrey questioned what type of advertising and signage
would be employed to designate the location of the jet ski rental business. Mr,
Planning & Zoning Board Meeting

May 29,2012
Draft Minutes

Page 3 0f 10



Fornella suggested using a flag sign on the pier. Interim City Planner I.aRue
informed him that any sign would need to be approved and have a permit as a
separate issue; that flag signs were generally not allowed; and that signage
requirements could also be added as another condition of approval.

At 8: 10 P.M,, the Chair opened the meeting to the public.

The first speaker was Stephanie Chambers, a resident of the Bayshore Yacht
and Tennis Club, who felt the business enhanced the City and agreed with the

conditions of marked parking and operating hours between 10 AM. and 6
P.M.

The next speaker, Ann Bakst, a 39 year resident of the Kennedy House, was
sworn in by the Clerk. She welcomed new business in the City and was in
- favor of approval, felt that the congestion in public parking on West Drive was
due to the reliance of the residents of the Bayshore Yacht and Tennis Club
upon public rather than private parking; and expressed the opinion that this
business should have as much right to the public parking as any other Harbor
Island user.

The next speaker, Mario Garcia of 7540 Cutlass Avenue, was sworn in by the
Clerk, He agreed with the Chair’s concern regarding parking, but felt that the
City needed new business and that parking should not be an obstacle.

The next speaker, Maria Garcia, of the Bayshore Yacht and Temis Club, was
sworn in by the Clerk. She spoke as owner-resident, owner-investor, and
member of the condominium association board against the detrimental effects
of a near-by jet ski rental business with regard to traffic, noise and liability.
She submitted her speech and a legal article on tortuous interference for the
record (entered into the record as Exhibit 1.)

The next speaker, George Piedra of Treasure Island, was sworn in by the
Clerk. He confirmed with the applicant, Miguel Fornella, that refueling would
take place elsewhere, such as the Grandview Palace Marina, and that jet ski
renters. would always be led in tours, and then expressed his approval.

The next speaker, Joseph Green, an owner and resident at the Bayshore Yacht
and Tennis Club, was swom in by the Cletk. As someone who worked nights,
his main concern was the noise generated by jet skis during the day. He also
questioned the ability of the applicant to manage tours alone with so many jet
skis involved, and whether the applicant had permission from the
condominium to enter through the lobby.

The next speaker was Virgilio Castro, recently become a renter at the Bayshore
Yacht and Tennis Club, who was opposed to the noise of jet skis and the use
of the building’s lobby by customers for access.
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The applicant, Miguel Fomella, took the podium and clarified that access
would not be through the building’s lobby, but through the parking garage. He
also maintained that jet skis were not noisy until reaching speeds of about
40mph, and not at the Smph or lower speeds at which he would be leading
groups away from the dock,

There were no more speakers and the Chair closed the meeting to the public at
8:35P.M.

Interim City Planner James LaRue added to the record that personal watercraft
could not be operated earlier than one half hour before sunrise or one half hour
after sunset. He also observed that noise from jet skis would be no greater than
the noise from outboard motors that would be expected at a marina, and that
the State had regulations on jet ski rentals which were a control on their
- possible indiscriminate use. The Vice Chair confirmed with the Interim City
"' Planner that the sale and use of alcohol was prohibited by State law.

Interim City Planner reviewed the conditions for approval: refueling only off-
site at an authorized refueling station; adherence to regulations regarding
speed, noise, and no-wake in the Biscayne Bay Aquatic Preserve; that the jet
skis be safely secured when on site and not in use; that three parking spaces be
designated, located as close as possible to the operation; that the hours of
operation be confined between 10 A.M. and 6 P.M. every day of the week; and
he advised he was unsure whether or not written authorization was required
from the condominium for access. '

The Chair questioned the availability and location of restrooms, which were a
requirement for operating a business. The applicant, Mr. Fornella, explained
that restrooms were behind the parking; Bayshore Yacht and Tennis Club
resident Maria Garcia argued that those restrooms were in the common area for
the condominium residents when using the pool. The Chair responded that the
marina must have access to restrooms as well, or it would not have been given
a license. He used the example of Grandview Palace, which provided access
through an area common to both its marina and the condominium.

1)  Board Recommendation

The Vice Chair, Jorge Gonzalez, made a Motion {0 recommend
approval of the request for a special use exception under Section
152.098 of the City of North Bay Village Code of Ordinances by
Miguel Fomella for the operation of a jet ski rental business at the
commercial marina located at 7904 West Drive, Harbor Island, North
Bay Village, Florida; subject to the conditions recommended by City
Staff and noting the contingencies of: three (3) required parking spaces
two (2) of them marked with the business name; a_prohibition on
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refueling by hand on-site; and adherence to all legislation regarding no-
wake zones, noise, and other rules on the operation of personal
watercraft in Biscayne Bay. The Motion was seconded by Board
Member James Carter. The votes were as follows: James Carter-Yes:
Bud Farrev-Yes: Joree Gonzalez-Yes; Reinaldo Trujille-Yes. The
Motion carried 4-0. '

City Attorney Kathy Mehaffey explained that the following ltem, 2B, was not
quasi-judicial but rather legislative in nature, and speakers were not required to
be sworn in, The Clerk then read the title of Item 2B.

. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE,
FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 152 OF THE CITY OF NORTH
BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES ENTITLED “ZONING” BY
REVISING SECTION 152111 PERTAINING TO ADULT
ENTERTAINMENT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Interim City Planner James LaRue presented for the Board to review and
recommend to the City Commission zoning regulation for adult entertainment
~ establishments and an accompanying back-up memo. He explained that the
attached Ordinance, Exhibit A, was intended to improve the clarity of the
existing regulations while providing for the appropriate location of such
establishments consistent with all controlling laws. Ie described the memo as
talking in terms of the regulation of adult entertainment establishments, the
zoning and distance requirements, and clarifying the distance requirements,
while making sure that it is a content-neutral ordinance that serves the City’s
government interest only in reducing the secondary effects associated with
adult entertainment establishments.

The revisions, he continued, clarify the calculating of the distance
requirements to eliminate confusion in trying to interpret and apply the current
wording without substantively changing the requirements, and provide that
distance shall be calculated by following a straight line from any portion of a
building used for an adult entertainment establishment or any building on the
property of an adult entertainment establishment to: the nearest point of the
property designated as residential; or the residential area of any property on
which over 25% of the floor area is devoted to residential use; or any area
used for a religious facility, public school, private school, public park, public
playground, library, daycare center or nursery for children, hotel or motel.

He went on to state that Section 152.111.01(b) of the proposed Code lists the
governmental studies which serve as evidence and testimony in support of the
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City’s substantial government interest in adopting the Ordinance and the
business regulations. Copies of the studies, which analyze the negative
secondary effects of sexually-oriented businesses on the community, and a
cover memorandum which summarizes each study, have been provided for the
Board’s review.

City Attorney Susan Trevarthen described cooperating with City staff, the City
Manager and the Interim City Planner, in preparing the Item now being
presented and recommended in a joint memorandum by the City Manager,
Interim City Planner, and City Attomey’s Office for the Board’s review and
recommendation to the City Commission.

The Chair explained the rules of conduct, limited speakers to three minutes,
each, and opened the meeting to the public at 8:42 P.M.

The first speaker was Kevin Vericker, of 7520 Hispanola Avenue, who stated
that the main concerns of himself and other citizens were: the need for the
change and the timing of changing the Ordinance in the middle of a lawsuit;
whether the attorneys had an opinion on the effect this change would have on
the outcome of the lawsuit; and whether it would be wise to hire more
specialized external expertise to review the Ordinance.

The Chair suggested continuing with the other speakers and responding to
questions at the end of the public meeting; City Attorney Susan Trevarthen
advised that the City Attorney’s Office and City staff would respond to any

questions that the Board would bring forward at the conclusion of the public
meeting.

The next speaker was resident Mario Garcia, who hoped that the proposed
changes would not make opening the sttip club any easier, in accordance with
the feelings that the City’s residents had already made clear, and urged the City
to “cross its t’s and dot its i’s.” '

The next speaker was resident Fane Lozman, who also asked why change the
Ordinance now, when in his opinion the change would only impact future
applications and not the existing one. He also offered the opinion that the City
was fighting an expensive losing battle by trying to “zone out” any possibility
of a strip club; questioned the decision making process; and claimed that newer
studies on the secondary effects of strip clubs contradicted the studies that
were being presented as justification for the Ordinance change.

The next speaker was Nancy Sonnett-Selwyn of 7512 Cutlass Avenue, who
questioned whether the City was required to make a place for a strip chub and
observed that other municipalities in South Florida were in the process of
restricting strip clubs.
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The next speaker was Scott Greenwald of 1415 79" Street Causeway, who
stated that the City had enacted an Ordinance that was quite specific in
allowing an adult entertainment use in a specified area under specified
conditions in obedience to the First Amendment of the Constitution, and urged
the Board to uphold it.

The next speaker was Bunny Hart, a resident of the Lexi, who said that when
considering constitutional rights, the rights of all the residents of this small
town should also be considered, and their wish to not see a club like this across
the street from where their children play.

The next speaker was George Piedra, a resident of Treasure Island, who was
uncertain whether the changes fo the Ordinance would make it easier or harder
for a strip club to be approved, and urged that the opposition of the majority of
the residents to the strip club be taken into consideration. :

The Chair closed the public meeting at 8:55 P.M.

The Chair asked the City Attorneys if they had any comments to make, and
City Attorney Susan Trevarthen advised the Chair that she would answer any
questions posed by the Board.

The Chair commented that he had read the extensive report, and had compared
both the first Ordinance and the amended one. He noted that he saw
clarification on questions that he himself had asked regarding the original
Ordinance. While language that he considered vague had been clarified, he saw
no changes in the numbers for measurements.

The Chair brought forward to the City Attorney the questions of some of the
residents as to the reason for changing the Ordinance now and the possible
effect on the current events in the City.

City Attorney Susan Trevarthen stated that-the Item was being brought forward
by the City Manager, the Interim City Planner, and the City Attorney, as
shown by the staff memo; and that all those departments recommended it for
consideration. The Ordinance, she said, clarifies and improves, and she offered
to respond further to more specific questions. The Chair felt he understood the
staff report and had no further questions.

1.) Board Recommendation

The Chair, Reinaldo Trujillo, made a Motion to accept the changes to
the Ordinance as written, and was seconded by Board member Bud
Farrey. The votes were as follows; James Carter-Yes; Bud Farrey-Yes;
Jorge Gonzalez-Yes: Reinaldo Trujillo-Yes. The Motion catried 4-0,
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C. DISCUSSION REGARDING YOUTH SERVICES MASTER PLAN

Kevin Vericker, Chair of the Youth Services Board, took the podium to
acquaint the Board with issues that the Youth Services Board had been
addressing, and to discuss joining forces with the Planning & Zoning Board as
had been suggested to him by City Manager Dennis Kelly. When the Planning
& Zoning Board took up the review of the City’s Recreation and Open Space
Master Plan, Mr. Vericker suggested that youth services be considered and
included; and noted that the City’s demographics had shifted, creating more
need for those services.

He pointed to the 2010 Census which showed that 20% of North Bay Village’s
population is under the age of 18; and of that group, the largest cohort is under
the age of 8 years old. He felt that the implication of this was that, if they were
to remain in the City, the children would be in need of places to go. Currently
there were few options for them, as the City’s small land area created
limitations, the City’s financial resources were constrained, and the local
businesses were not geared toward children.

He explained that the Youth Services Board, since its revival last year, had
taken some steps to address the needs of youth in the City, such as
implementing background checks for volunteers working in a capacity that
interacted with children; work on creating a directory of youth services
available in the nearby area; exploration of the possibility of agreements with
other cities to participate in their youth services programs, in which the Mayor
had been active; and discussion regarding a Master Recreational Plan to
systematically address the future needs of the City’s children.

Kevin Vericker suggested that the planning that the Youth Services Board
wished to undertake was best integrated info the City’s development plans as a
whole, and that perhaps an ad hoc committee could be formed to address youth
services as an integrated part of the City’s overall goals and plans.

The Chair had concerns about possible costs, and suggested first identifying
those programs which are immediately possible for the City, as well as trying
to attract more businesses to the City that offered services for children. The
Chair offered the opinion that summer programs were the most important to
have, and also felt that parents would need to contribute financially.

Board Member James Carter spoke in favor, and mentioned that he hoped that

the discussions with Miami Beach would result in more access to programs for
the children.
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Kevin Vericker hoped the City would develop a longer term, strategic plan for
addressing its youth services needs, and pointed out that teen-agers particularly
lacked recreational options. He asked if he might have permission to report to
the Youth Services Board that they would be able to send represenytatives
attend Master Plan meetings, and the Chair agreed.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. REGULAR MEETING - APRIL 17, 2012
1.) Board Recommendation

The Chair, Reinaldo Trujillo, made a Motion to approve the minutes of
the regular meeting of May 29, 2012 as written; and was seconded by
the Vice Chair, Jorge Gonzalez: The Motion carried with all in favor,
4-0.

4. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned by the Chair, Reinaldo Trujillo, at 9:15 P.M.

Prepared and submitted by: Katharine Price
Clerical Assistant

Adopted by the, Planning & Zoning Board on
this A7) dayof  sJume. A0 1 Z

/= A

o it

“Reinaldp Trujillo, Chair

(Note: The Minutes are not a verbatim record of the meeting. A copy of the audio recording is available at the City
Clerk’s Office until the time for disposition in accordance with the Records Disposition and other Public Records Law.)
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MINUTES
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING
CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS
1700 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, #132
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL. 33141

TUESDAY, MAY 29, 2012 — 7:30 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL,

The meeting was called to order by the Chair, Reinaldo Trujillo, at 7:37 P.M. and
the Pledge of Allegiance was recited. Present at Roll Call were the Chair, Reinaldo
~ Trujillo; the Vice Chair, Jorge Gonzalez; Board Member James Carter; and Board
Member Bud Farrey.

Board Member Barry Beschel was absent and excused by the Chair.

Attending the meeting were Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps, Vice Mayor Eddie Lim,
and Commissioner Richard Chervony.

City staff present were City Manager Dennis Kelly, City Attorney Kathy
Mehaffey, City Attorney Susan Trevarthen, Interim City Planner James LaRue,
and Building Department Clerk Ana DeLeon.

(PUBLIC HEARINGS) ALL INDIVIDUALS DESIRING TO PROVIDE
TESTIMONY SHALL BE SWORN IN.

City Attorney Kathy Mehaffey read the provisions for conduct of quasi-judicial
public hearings, and asked for disclosure of ex-parte communications on the part
of members of the Board. No Board members had anything to disclose.

The Clerk read the title of the request in Item 2A and swore in all those planning to
speak regarding the Item.

A. A REQUEST BY MIGUEL FORNELLA FOR A SPECIAL USE
EXCEPTION UNDER SECTION 152.098 OF THE CITY OF NORTH
BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE OPERATION OF
A JET SKI RENTAL BUSINESS AT THE COMMERCIAL MARINA
AT 7904 WEST DRIVE, HARBOR ISLAND, NORTH BAY VILLAGE,
FLORIDA.
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Interim City Planner James LaRue reported on the application for a special use
exception for a proposed jet ski tour/rental business, which was to be located
at the southernmost dock of the commercial marina at the Bayshore Yacht and
Tennis Club. He explained that both the yacht club and the marina are listed as
special use exceptions within the commercial general zoning district; jet ski
rental is an additional use of the marina, and also exists as a special use
category within the Land Development Code. He further clarified two points
that had been previously questioned: one, that the marina was in fact a
commercial marina; and two, that refueling could not be done on-site by hand
but must be done off-site where proper gas station facilities for fueling existed.
On the last point, he said, the applicant would state for the record his
agreement.

No traffic impact was expected and therefore no traffic analysis had been
petformed.

On the issue of parking, based on six jet skis located in two slips or berths and
a group tour type of approach to the rental business as indicated by the
applicant, Interim City Planner James LaRue suggested a total of three parking
spaces. One parking space per slip was already a requirement for the marina,
and a review of regulations concerning existing jet ski rental businesses
showed precedents requiring one parking space for every two jet skis. Given
the probability of clients sharing vehicles to arrive for the group tour service
that the applicant intended to operate, Interim City Planner Larue felt that three
parking spaces would prove adequate for six jet skis; and the applicant, he said,
had agreed to provide one parking space additional to the two spaces already
supplied by the marina for the two slips. More information as to the locations
of the parking spaces would be supplied by the applicant.

The Interim City Planner further recommended that it be ascertained there
were no restrictions on access to the marina, and that if any permissions were
required from the condominium association involved, then those permissions
needed to be furnished in writing, Other recommended conditions were that the
hours of operation were to be confined between 10 A.M. and 6 P.M.; that the
jet skis be safely secured when not in operation; that operation of the jet skis
comply with rules governing the use of boats in the Biscayne Bay Aquatic
Preserve, including noise, no-wake, and other issues.

The applicant, Miguel Fornella, took the podium and described his business
operation and the parking provisions, including one parking space located
inside the building used for his business equipment, and two parking spaces
located outside. He also explained his plan to lead jet ski tours around the bay,
and not in the vicinity of the area’s buildings.
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To facilitate communication with the applicant, the Chair conducted his
questioning of the applicant in Spanish and also translated the discussion into
English.

The Chair questioned whether parking for jet ski customers could become an
issue on Harbor Island, when each jet ski could hold up to two people, and one
of the three parking spaces being supplied for the use of up to six jet skis was
to be used for equipment storage. The Chair noted that parking was already an
issue on Harbor Island. The applicant, Mr. Miguel Fornella, described how
people came in groups, rarely alone; that clients who were hotel guests might
be transported by him to the marina; and that only five of his jet skis were
available to be rented by customers. The Chair asked whether the applicant had
parking spaces that were marked and specifically reserved for him; and upon
learning that the applicant had no marked and exclusive spaces, considered this
to be a major drawback both for the applicant’s business viability and the
area’s parking problems. Mr. Fornella said that he needed. to get more
information from the marina regarding parking.

The Chair asked whether the applicant had been in touch with the
condominium association, and Mr. Fornella responded that he had been, and
the property manager had been made aware of the business.

The Vice Chair, Jorge Gonzalez, sought clarification from the applicant
regarding the location of parking and access to the marina pier. The Vice
Chair noted that access to the pier was through the building and a considerable
distance from the parking location pointed out by the applicant, which was
street-side. The Vice Chair confirmed with the applicant that he had
permission from the condominium association for access.

The Vice Chair questioned how the growth of the business would be managed,
and where people might be expected to wait for available jet skis as the
popularity of the business increased. Mr. Fornella replied that he expected his
customers to be served primarily by appointment.

Interim City Planner LaRue sought clarification regarding whether the parking
was street-side, or by the tennis courts as he had supposed and which he felt
was the best location, Upon learning that the applicant had indicated street-side
parking, the Chair pointed out that this parking was shared with other
commercial . visitors to the building and therefore it was critical that the
applicant have assigned parking. The Interim City Planner suggested to the
Chair that a solution would be to have the recommendation include three
allocated spaces, marked, and as close to the pier as possible; and City
Attorney Mehaffey affirmed that such a recommendation was permissible.
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Board Member Bud Farrey questioned what type of advertising and signage
would be employed to designate the location of the jet ski rental business. Mr,
Fornella suggested using a flag sign on the pier. Interim City Planner LaRue
informed him that any sign would need to be approved and have a permit as a
separate issue; that flag signs were generally not allowed; and that signage
requirements could also be added as another condition of approval.

At 8: 10 P.M., the Chair opened the meeting to the public.

The first speaker was Stephanie Chambers, a resident of the Bayshore Yacht
and Tennis Club, who felt the business enhanced the City and agreed with the
conditions of marked parking and operating hours between 10 A M. and 6
P.M.

The next speaker, Ann Bakst, a 39 year resident of the Kennedy House, was
sworn in by the Clerk. She welcomed new business in the City and was in
favor of approval, felt that the congestion in public parking on West Drive was
due to the reliance of the residents of the Bayshore Yacht and Tennis Club
upon public rather than private parking; and expressed the opinion that this
business should have as much right to the public parking as any other Harbor
Island user.

The next speaker, Mario Garcia of 7540 Cutlass Avenue, was sworn in by the
Clerk. He agreed with the Chair’s concern regarding parking, but felt that the
City needed new business and that parking should not be an obstacle.

The next speaker, Maria Garcia, of the Bayshore Yacht and Tennis Club, was
sworn in by the Clerk. She spoke as owner-resident, owner-investor, and
member of the condominium association board against the detrimental effects
of a near-by jet ski rental business with regard fo traffic, noise and liability.
She submitted her speech and a legal article on tortuous interference for the
record (entered into the record as Exhibit 1.)

The next speaker, George Piedra of Treasure Island, was sworn in by the
Clerk. He confirmed with the applicant, Migue!l Fornella, that refueling would
take place elsewhere, such as the Grandview Palace Marina, and that jetski
renters would always be led in tours, and then expressed his approval.

The next speaker, Joseph Green, an owner and resident at the Bayshore Yacht
and Tennis Club, was sworn in by the Clerk. As someone who worked nights
his main concern was the noise generated by jet skis during the day. He also
questioned the ability of the applicant to manage tours alone with so many jet
skis involved, and whether the applicant had permission from the
condominium to enter through the lobby.
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The next speaker was Virgilio Castro, recently become a renter at the Bayshore
Yacht and Tennis Club, who was opposed to the noise of jet skis and the use
of the building’s lobby by customers for access.

The applicant, Miguel Fornella, took the podium and clarified that access
would not be through the building’s lobby, but through the parking garage. He
also maintained that jet skis were not noisy until reaching speeds of about
40mph, and not at the 5mph or lower speeds at which he would be leading
groups away from the dock.

There were no more speakers and the Chair closed the meeting to the public at
8:35P.M.

Interim City Planner James LaRue added to the record that personal watercraft
could not be operated earlier than one half hour before sunrise or one half hour
after sunset. He also observed that noise from jet skis would be no greater than
the noise from outboard motors that would be expected at a marina, and that
the State had regulations on jet ski rentals which were a control on their
possible indiscriminate use. The Vice Chair confirmed with the Interim City
Planner that the sale and use of alcohol was prohibited by State law,

Interim City Planner reviewed the conditions for approval: refueling only off-
site at an authorized refueling station; adherence to regulations regarding
speed, noise, and no-wake in the Biscayne Bay Aquatic Preserve; that the jet
skis be safely secured when on site and not in use; that three parking spaces be
designated, located as close as possible to the operation; that the hours of
operation be confined between 10 A.M. and 6 P.M. every day of the week; and
he advised he was unsure whether or not written authorization was required
from the condominium for access.

The Chair questioned the availability and location of restrooms, which were a
requirement for operating a business, The applicant, Mr. Fornella, explained
that restrooms were behind the parking; Bayshore Yacht and Tennis Club
resident Maria Garcia argued that those restrooms were in the common area for
the condominium residents when using the pool. The Chair responded that the
marina must have access to restrooms as well, or it would not have been given
a license. He used the example of Grandview Palace, which provided access
through an area common to both its marina and the condominivm.

1.) Board Recommendation
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The Vice Chair, Jorge Gonzalez, made a Motion_ to recommend
approval of the request for a special use exception under Section
152.098 of the City of North Bay Village Code of Ordinances by
Miguel Fornella for the operation of a jet ski rental business at the
commercial marina located at 7904 West Drive, Harbor Island, North
Bay Village, Florida; subject to the conditions recommended by City
Staff and noting the contingencies of: three (3) required parking spaces,
two (2) of them marked with the business name: a prohibition on
refueling by hand on-site; and adherence to all legislation regarding no-
wake zones, noise, and other rules on the operation of personal
watercraft in Biscayne Bay. The Motion was seconded by Board
Member James Carter. The votes were as follows: James Carter-Yes:
Bud Farrey-Yes; Jorge Gonzalez-Yes; Reinaldo Trujillo-Yes. The
Motion carried 4-0, ‘

City Aftorney Kathy Mehaffey explained that the following Ttem, 2B, was not
quasi-judicial but rather legislative in nature, and speakers were not required to
be sworn in. The Clerk then read the title of Item 2B.

. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE,
FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 152 OF THE CITY OF NORTH
BAY VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES ENTITLED “ZONING” BY
REVISING SECTION 152111 PERTAINING TO ADULT
ENTERTAINMENT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Interim City Planner James LaRue presented for the Board to review and
recommend to the City Commission zoning regulation for aduit entertainment
establishments and an accompanying back-up memo. He explained that the
attached Ordinance, Exhibit A, was intended to improve the clarity of the
existing regulations while providing for the appropriate location of such
establishments consistent with all controlling laws. He described the memo as
talking in terms of the regulation of adult entertainment establishments, the
zoning and distance requirements, and clarifying the distance requirements,
while making sure that it is a content-neutral ordinance that serves the City’s
government interest only in reducing the secondary effects associated with
adult entertainment establishments.
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The revisions, he continued, clarify the calculating of the distance
requirements to eliminate confusion in trying to interpret and apply the current
wording without substantively changing the requirements, and provide that
distance shall be calculated by following a straight line from any portion of a
building used for an adult entertainment establishment or any building on the
property of an adult entertainment establishment to: the nearest point of the
property designated as residential; or the residential area of any property on
which over 25% of the floor area is devoted to residential use; or any area
used for a religious facility, public school, private school, public park, public
playground, library, daycare center or nursery for children, hotel or motel.

He went on to state that Section 152.111.01(b) of the proposed Code lists the
governmental studies which serve as evidence and testimony in support of the
City’s substantial government interest in adopting the Ordinance and the
business regulations. Copies of the studies, which analyze the negative
secondary effects of sexually-oriented businesses on the community, and a
cover memorandum which summarizes each study, have been provided for the
Board’s review,

City Attorney Susan Trevarthen described cooperating with City staff, the City
Manager and the Interim City Planner, in preparing the Item now being
presented and recommended in a joint memorandum by the City Manager,
Interim City Planner, and City Attorney’s Office for the Board’s review and
recommendation to the City Commission.

The Chair explained the rules of conduct, limited speakers to three minutes,
each, and opened the meeting to the public at 8:42 P.M.

The first speaker was Kevin Vericker, of 7520 Hispanola Avenue, who stated
that the main concerns of himself and other citizens were: the need for the
change and the timing of changing the Ordinance in the middle of a lawsuit;
whether the attorneys had an opinion on the effect this change would have on
the outcome of the lawsuit; and whether it would be wise to hire more
specialized external expertise to review the Ordinance.

The Chair suggested continuing with the other speakers and responding to
questions at the end of the public meeting; City Attorney Susan Trevarthen
advised that the City Attorney’s Office and City staff would respond to any
questions that the Board would bring forward at the conclusion of the public
meeting,

The next speaker was resident Mario Garcia, who hoped that the proposed
changes would not make opening the strip club any easier, in accordance with
the feelings that the City’s residents had already made clear, and urged the City
to “cross its t’s and dot its i’s.”
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The next speaker was resident Fane Lozman, who also asked why change the
Ordinance now, when in his opinion the change would only impact future
applications and not the existing one. He also offered the opinion that the City
was fighting an expensive losing battle by trying to “zone out” any possibility
of a strip club; questioned the decision making process; and claimed that newer
studies on the secondary effects of strip clubs contradicted the studies that
were being presented as justification for the Ordinance change. -

The next speaker was Nancy Sonnett-Selwyn of 7512 Cutlass Avenue, who
questioned whether the City was required to make a place for a strip club and
observed that other municipalities in South Florida were in the process of
‘restricting strip clubs.

The next speaker was Scott Greenwald of 1415 79" Street Causeway, who
stated that the City had enacted an Ordinance that was quite specific in
allowing an adult entertainment use in a specified area under specified
conditions in obedience to the First Amendment of the Constitution, and urged
the Board to uphold it.

The next speaker was Bunny Hart, a resident of the Lexi, who said that when
considering constitutional rights, the rights of all the residents of this small
town should also be considered, and their wish to not see a club like this across
the street from where their children play.

The next speaker was George Piedra, a resident of Treasure Island, who was
uncertain whether the changes to the Ordinance would make it easier or harder
for a strip club to be approved, and urged that the opposition of the majority of
the residents to the strip club be taken into consideration.

The Chair closed the public meeting at 8:55 P.M.

The Chair asked the City Attorneys if they had any comments to make, and
City Attorney Susan Trevarthen advised the Chair that she would answer any
questions posed by the Board.

The Chair commented that he had read the extensive report, and had compared
both the first Ordinance and the amended one. He noted that he saw
clarification on questions that he himself had asked regarding the original
Ordinance. While language that he considered vague had been clarified, he saw
no changes in the numbers for measurements.

The Chair brought forward to the City Attorney the questions of some of the
residents as to the reason for changing the Ordinance now and the possible
effect on the current events in the City.
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City Attorney Susan Trevarthen stated that the Item was being brought forward
by the City Manager, the Interim City Planner, and the City Attorney, as
shown by the staff memo; and that all those departments recommended it for
consideration. The Ordinance, she said, clarifies and improves, and she offered
to respond further to more specific questions. The Chair felt he understood the
- staff report and had no further questions.

1.) Board Recommendation

The Chair, Reinaldo Trujillo, made a Motion to accept the changes to
the Ordinance as written, and was seconded by Board member Bud

Farrey. The votes were as follows: James Carter-Yes; Bud Farrey-Yes:
Jorge Gonzalez-Yes; Reinaldo Trujillo-Yes. The Motion carried 4-0,

. DISCUSSION REGARDING YOUTH SERVICES MASTER PLAN

Kevin Vericker, Chair of the Youth Services Board, took the podium to
acquaint the Board with issues that the Youth Services Board had been
addressing, and to discuss joining forces with the Planning & Zoning Board as
had been suggested to him by City Manager Dennis Kelly. When the Planning
& Zoning Board took up the review of the City’s Recreation and Open Space
Master Plan, Mr. Vericker suggested that youth services be considered and
included; and noted that the City’s demographics had shifted, creating more
need for those services.

He pointed to the 2010 Census which showed that 20% of North Bay Village’s
population is under the age of 18; and of that group, the largest cohort is under
the age of 8 years old. He felt that the implication of this was that, if they were
to remain in the City, the children would be in need of places to go. Currently
there were few options for them, as the City’s small land area created
limitations, the City’s financial resources were constrained, and the local
businesses were not geared toward children.

He explained that the Youth Services Board, since its revival last year, had
taken some steps to address the needs of youth in the City, such as
implementing background checks for volunteers working in a capacity that
interacted with children; work on creating a directory of youth services
available in the nearby area; exploration of the possibility of agreements with
other cities to participate in their youth services programs, in which the Mayor
had been active; and discussion regarding a Master Recreational Plan to
systematically address the future needs of the City’s children.

Kevin Vericker suggested that the planning that the Youth Services Board
wished to undertake was best integrated into the City’s development plans as a
whole, and that perhaps an ad hoc committee could be formed to address youth
services as an integrated part of the City’s overall goals and plans.
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The Chair had concerns about possible costs, and suggested first identifying
those programs which are immediately possible for the City, as well as trying
to attract more businesses to the City that offered services for children. The
Chair offered the opinion that summer programs were the most important to
have, and also felt that parents would need to contribute financially.

Board Member James Carter spoke in favor, and mentioned that he hoped that
the discussions with Miami Beach would result in more access to programs for
the children. '

Kevin Vericker hoped the City would develop a longer term, strategic plan for
addressing its youth services needs, and pointed out that teen-agers,
particularly, lacked recreational options. He asked if he might have
permission to report to the Youth Services Board that they would be able to
send representatives attend Master Plan meetings, and the Chair agreed.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. REGULAR MEETING - APRIL 17, 2012

1) Board Recommendation.

The Chair, Reinaldo Trujillo, made a Motion to app' rove the minutes of
the regular meeting of May 29, 2012 as written; and was seconded by

the Vice Chair, Jorge Gonzalez. The Motion carried with all in favor,

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned by the Chair, Reinaldo Trujillo, at 9:15 P.M.

Prepared and submitted by: Katharine Price

Clerical Assistant

Adopted by the Planning & Zoning Board on

this

day of

Reinaldo Trujillo, Chair

(Note: The Minutes are not a verbatim record of the meeting. A copy of the audio fccording is available at the City
Clerk’s Office until the time for disposition in accordance with the Records Disposition and other Public Records Law.)
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MINUTES

YOUTH SERVICES BOARD MEETING

CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS
1700 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, #132
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL. 33141

JUNE 11, 2012 - 7:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by the Chair, Kevin Vericker, at 7:11 P.M. Present at
Roll Call were the Chair, Kevin Vericker; Alex Funkhouser; and Jorge Piedra.

Absent were Board members Nelly Lopez and Cyndy Roman.

Also present was City Manager Dennis Kelly.

NEW BUSINESS

A,

REPORT ON PLANNING & ZONING BOARD ACCEPTANCE OF A
JOINT MASTER PLAN - BRIEFING BY CITY MANAGER ON
PROCESS TO JOIN

The Chair, Kevin Vericker, told the Board of the favorable reception by the
Planning & Zoning Board of a joint master plan. City Manager Dennis Kelly
suggested discussing Items 2A and 2B together in addressing the subject of the
Master Recreation Plan, and explained that it was his intention to recommend
that the next budget include from $15,000 to $25,000 to cover the estimated
cost of producing a Master Recreation Plan for the City. Following the budget
process, after October 1% it would be appropriate for either a joint meeting of
the Boards, or with the members of one Board attending the meeting of the
other Board, at which the RFP and Scope of Work would be addressed and
applications screened. The City Manager clarified for the Chair that the Master
Recreation Plan would cover the needs of residents of all ages, but he expected
the lion’s share of it to deal with youth under the age of 21, and therefore to
chiefly concern the Youth Services Board. The recreation study would first
need to draw upon data regarding demographics and space availability coming
out of the Planning & Zoning function, thus the involvement of the Planning &
Zoning Board.
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The City Manager hoped to be able to approach the Miami-Dade County
School Board with a proposal to lease on a long-term basis the property behind
Treasure Island Elementary School for the purpose of constructing playing
fields with lights, bleachers, and scoreboards. Miami-Dade County was open to
ideas on the joint and after hours usage of its school properties, he explained,
but it was necessary to first have a Master Recreation Plan in hand and
demonstrate commitment to them.

The Board and the City Manager speculated on vatious ways that recreation
programs could be run if the City had its own playing fields: the possible
addition of full or part-time recreation person to the City staff; the involvement
of Miami-Dade County Parks and Recreation; or perhaps an interiocal
agreement could be negotiated with Miami Beach.

The Board favored the idea and Board member Piedra commented on the
benefit that having local space for recreation would provide to children in the
City, and suggested also that it would have a favorable impact on real estate
values.

DISCUSSION OF BUDGET FOR YOUTH SERVICES IN 2013

The Chair, Kevin Vericker, addressed the question of money for Youth
Services being located within the Police Department budget, and questioned
whether it were not more appropriate to place it within the City’s management
budget. He suggested that in preparing next year’s budget, it be relocated there.
The City Manager offered to inquire and see if there was a compelling reason
to leave it in the Police Department budget; otherwise, he agreed that it was
more suitably under the City Managei’s control, The Chair observed that the
$25,000 in the current budget was a Police Department line item for Youth
Services which was not designated for PAAL or police youth services. Board
member Alex Funkhouser asked for the amount of the remaining balance. The
City Manager offered to speak Chief Daniels when the Chief returned from a
trip out of town.

The Chair suggested that the next meeting should address the status of the
Youth Services money in the current budget, as well as the status of PAAL.
Board member Alex Funkhouser mentioned that this meeting was the third one
at which the Board had sought answers to these questions.

Board member Alex Funkhouser raised the subject of the International

Baccalaureate program at Treasure Island Elementary School, and the

challenge of providing the necessary funding from the community. City

Manager Kelly informed the Board that the cost estimate was approximately

from $115,000 to $130,000 to buy into the program, based on discussion with
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the Miami Beach International Baccalaureate program coordinator. Miami
Beach funded their own program costs with a surcharge to waste management
_ (the garbage bill); the City Manager was exploring similar options.

The Chair asked what the chief advantages were to the community of the
International Baccalaureate program, The City Manager responded that the
program was considered to enhance the academic reputation of the children
who graduate from it. Board member Alex Funkhouser explained that it was
truly an international program, with international standards for its curriculum;
as well as a culture of excellence that elevated the entire environment.
Teachers were given continuous training, and its anti-bullying component
rendered “‘rough” schools ineligible to have an I. B. program. For the program
to work, there needed to be a feeder school system which contained the
program, as there was in Miami Beach, and through which all grade levels
participated. The City Manager added that although it was possible to enter the
program at higher grade levels, those who entered later were behind the other
students and found it more difficult.

City Manager Kelly was not sure the City would be able to incorporate
$130,000 for the program into its budget by this coming fall, as time was short
and the commitment to the fall budget needed to be made by this July or
August. Board member Funkhouser believed it was very important for the City
and should be pushed forward as much as possible, for next year if not this
year. The Chair suggested that residents needed to be informed of the benefits,
and the additional potential for a positive effect on real estate values. The City
Manager commented that Miami Beach has seen a decided shift in
demographics away from a retirement community in the last ten years, which
was credited to their education programs and the desire of people to live in the
community that offers them,

The Chair suggested organizing a community workshop meeting focused on
the future of education, perhaps jointly sponsored by the City Commission and
Treasure Island Elementary School and its PTA. The City Manager suggested
the Miami Beach 1B. program coordinator, who was an enthusiastic and
effective spokesperson for the program, might also attend. The possibility that
the new day care center, Miami-Dade County and the School Board could also
send representatives was mentioned.

The City Manager informed the Board that a 4™ of July celebration without
fireworks was being planned to be held at Dr. Paul Vogel Park; and that movie
nights had been held there by the Police Department with 95 people attending
the last one. Final approvals for park signage were expected at the next City
Commission meeting, including posted rules for park users. The City had been
approached by private groups who wanted to use the park for special events,
such as a dog show. The City was developing its policy for such usage,
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including fees and hours, and rules for exceptional use. The Board discussed
the fact that the park appeared to be well used by a variety of people, and that
parking would be an issue. The City Manager described the City’s efforts to
squeeze in more parking on Harbor Island by re-striping the parking areas, and
claiming an area of grass stripping by the “360” building that lies in the public
right-of-way for public parking. :

RESOLUTION TO REPLACE NELLY LOPEZ

The Board discussed that Board member Nelly Lopez had been absent for the
last five meetings, and had shared verbally with some members that her
circumstances no longer allowed her to attend.

1) Board Action

Jorge Piedra made a Motion to recommend the removal Nelly T.opez
from the Youth Services Board due to her past absences and her verbal
communication with Board members that she would be unable to attend
meetings in the future. The Motion was seconded by Alex Funkhouser.
The votes were as follows: Alex Funkhouser-Yes; Jorge Piedra-Yes;
and Kevin Vericker-Yes.

GENERAL DISCUSSION

City Manager Kelly informed the Board that the City Commission wished to
create an ordinance fixing a regular monthly time slot for Youth Services
Board meetings. The Board agreed on the third Monday of every month at

7:00 P.M., with July 16" as the date of the next meeting.

1.) Board Action

The Chair, Kevin Vericker, made a Motion to establish the third
Monday of each month at 7:00 P.M. as the meeting time for the Youth
Services Board. The Motion was seconded by Jorge Piedra. The votes
were as follows: Alex Funkhouser-Yes; Jorge Piedra-Yes: and Kevin
Vericker-Yes. The Motion carried 3-0.
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3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A, REGULAR MEETING - APRIL 2, 2012

The minutes of the April 2, 2012 meeting were previously approved at the
May 7, 2012 meeting,

B. REGULAR MEETING - MAY 7, 2012

Board member Alex Funkhouser suggested, and the Board unanimously
agreed, fo strike out the phrase “since all agreed little or nothing was currently
offered”” from page 3 of the minutes of the meeting of May 7, 2012, citing the
City’s accomplishment in providing the summer camp program.

The Chair, Kevin Vericker moved to approve the minutes of May 7, 2012 with
the deletion. seconded by Jorge Piedra. The Motion carried with all in Favor.

5. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 8:10 P.M.

Prepared and submitted by:
Katharine Price, Clerical Assistant

Adopted by the Youth Services Board on
this day of

Kevin Vericker, Chair

(Note: The Minutes are not a verbatim record of the meeting. A copy of the audio recording is available at the City
Clerk’s Office uniil the time for disposition in accordance with the Records Disposition and other Public Records Law.)
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